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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Friday, July 22, 1960.
(13)
The Special Committee on Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms met
at 9.40 a.m. this day. The Chairman, Mr. N. L. Spencer, presided.
Members present: Messrs. Aiken, Batten, Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway),
Deschatelets, Dorion, Mandziuk, Rapp, Spencer, Stewart and Weichel—10.
In attendance: The Honourable E. D. Fulton, Minister of Justice, and Mr. E.
A. Driedger, Deputy Minister of Justice.
The Chairman read a list of those persons appearing before the Committee
and briefs and letters received, in addition to a list of those persons whom the
Committee had canvassed.
A report from the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure was read, as
follows:
Thursday, July 21, 1960.
The Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure met at 9.10 p.m. this
day. The following Members were present: Messrs. Badanai, Dorion,
Spencer, Stewart (and in the absence of Mr. Argue, Mr. Winch, as an
observer).
The Subcommittee arrived at the following unanimous decision:
There being no further witnesses to appear before the Committee,
except Mr. David Mundell who will appear Saturday morning, July
23rd and the Minister of Justice, Mr. E. D. Fulton and members
of his department, the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
recommends that no further representations on Bill C-79 be solicited.
On motion of Mr. Stewart, seconded by Mr. Dorion, the said report was
unanimously adopted.
The Chairman introduced Mr. Fulton who, assisted by Mr. Driedger,
reviewed statements of certain witnesses previously heard before the Committee
and advanced and explained opposing views.
At 10.55 a.m., Mr. Fulton’s questioning continuing, the Committee adjourned
to meet againt at 2.30 p.m. this day.
AFTERNOON SITTING
(14)
The Committee reconvened at 2.32 p.m. The Chairman, Mr. Spencer,
presided.
Members present: Messrs. Aiken, Badanai, Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway),
Deschatelets, Dorion, Martin (Essex East), Rapp, Spencer, Stefanson, and
Stewart—10.
In attendance: Same personnel present as at the morning sitting with the
addition of Mr. D. H. W. Henry, Director, Advisory Section, Legal Branch,
Department of Justice.
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Following discussion of the question of calling further witnesses before the
Committee, Mr. Fulton was permitted to continue his comments on the Bill.
Members proceeded to question the Minister following a Clause-by-Clause
procedure.
Mr. Aiken read to the Committee a suggested wording for a preamble to
the Bill.
The Chairman read a suggested preamble to the Bill provided by Mr. John
Drysdale.
On motion of Mr. Brown (Vancouver-Kingsway), seconded by Mr. Rapp,
Resolved,—That when the Committee rises on Saturday, July 23, it stands
adjourned until Monday morning at 9.30 a.m.
At 6.10 p.m. the Committee adjourned to meet againt at 9.30 a.m., Saturday,
July 23, 1960.
J. E. O’Connor,
Clerk of the Committee.

EVIDENCE
Friday, July 22, 1960.
9.30 a.m.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, first of all I would like to welcome to the
committee Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway). I believe also Mr. Weichel
has been added to the committee. I hope he will arrive shortly.
I wish to present a recommendation of the steering committee. The
steering committee met last night. Before doing so, I would like to review
for a moment the proceedings of the committee thus far. We have heard
orally from Professor F. R. Scott, McGill university; Professor C. P. Wright
of Ottawa; Professor C. R. Dehler of St. Eustache-sur-le-lac; Mr. D. L.
Michael, representing the Seventh Day Adventist church in Canada; Mr.
Saul Hayes, Q.C., representing the Canadian Jewish congress; Mr. D. Mclnnes,
Q.C., vice-president of the Canadian bar association, representing that associa
tion; Professor Bowker, dean of law, university of Alberta; Mr. Irving Himel,
Q.C., of Toronto, executive secretary of the association of civil liberties, and
with him also Dr. E. A. Corbett; Mr. Claude Jodoin and with him Dr. Forsey,
Mr. Stanley Knowles, Mr. Kaplanski and Mr. Andras, representing the Cana
dian labour congress; Mr. F. P. Varcoe, Q.C., former deputy attorney general
for Canada; Professor A. R Lower of Queen’s university; Professor O. E.
Lang of the university of Saskatchewan; Professor Maxwell Cohen, McGill
university; Mr. L. A. Tufts, representing the Christian Science church of
Canada. In addition we have received either briefs or letters making sub
missions to the committee from the Canadian chamber of commerce, the
Canadian construction association, the Canadian daily newspaper publishers
association, the Waterloo chamber of commerce, Mr. A. N. Carter who, I
believe, was on the advisory committee to the Canadian bar association—I
may not be accurate there, but I believe that was his position; the Y.W.C.A.;
Associated Investors of Canada Limited, and Mr. Frank O’Hearne, security
and reform director.
'
In addition to hearing from those individuals and organizations, we have
contacted so far as possible the following individuals and organizations:
Charles B. Bourne, professor of law of the university of British Columbia;
Mr. F. Andrew Brewin, Q.C., of the university of Toronto; the Canadian
citizenship council; the Canadian federation of agriculture; the Canadian
association of adult education; the Canadian Catholic conference of labour;
the Chinese community centre of Ontario; the Canadian welfare council;
Professor Murray Donnelly of the university of Manitoba; Monsignor Paul
E. Gosselin; Mr. John Louis Gagnon of La Presse, Montreal; the human
rights celebration committee; Mr. W. R. Packett, Q.C., former deputy minister
of justice; Miss Pauline Jewitt; Professor Bora Laskin; Mr. G. Eamon Park,
representing, I believe, the united steelworkers; Professor Louis Phillip Pigeon,
Q.C., of Laval university; Mr. John E. Read; Miss Agnes Roy, representing
the Y.W.C.A.; Dr. Frank Vallee, of McMaster university; Mr. H. D. Woods,
of McGill university; Mr. Ed. McWhinney, faculty of law of the university
of Toronto, and Mr. Justice J. T. Thorson.
I believe that list is complete. There may have been an omission.
None of those, whom I last mentioned, who have been contacted, expressed
any particular desire to appear before the committee. Various reasons have been
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assigned for this lack of desire, including some views expressed that their
ideas have been satisfactorily presented to the committee by others who have
appeared before the committee.
In respect to Mr. Justice Thorson, you will recall that his appearance
was considered by the steering committee, and for the reasons assigned namely,
the maintanence of the independence, dignity, and inviolability of the judiciary,
we considered that his expressed willingness to appear before the committee
ought not to be entertained.
In addition to those that I have mentioned, your committee contacted
Mr. David W. Mundell, Q.C., and arrangements have been made with him to
appear before this committee tomorrow morning.
I believe you will agree that was a rather imposing array of talent that
has been contacted by the committee, and we have already heard from a great
many of them. If I may be bold enough to say so, I can hardly conceive of any
point of view which can be advanced by anyone that we have not had submitted
to us.
In consequence, I have this report:
The subcommittee on agenda and procedure met at 10 p.m. yester
day, July 21. The following members were present: Messrs. Badanai,
Dorion, Stewart, Spencer and, in the absence of Mr. Argue, Mr. Harold
Winch, as an observer.
The subcommittee arrived at the following unanimous decision,
which is recommended to this committee:
There being no further witnesses to appear before the committee,
except Mr. David Mundell, who will appear on Saturday morning,
July 23, and the Minister of Justice, the Hon. E. D. Fulton, and the mem
bers of his department, the subcommittee on agenda and procedure
recommends that no further representations on bill C-79 be solicited.
I consider it now in order to accept a motion for the adoption of that
report.
Mr. Stewart: I so move.
Mr. Dorion: I second that.
The Chairman: Moved by Mr. Stewart, seconded by Mr. Dorion. Is there
any discussion, gentlemen?
Mr. Deschatelets: I would like to know, does the list of names you have
already mentioned include the list of names that have been handed to you by
Mr. Paul Martin?
The Chairman: I think I can reliably inform you it includes everyone who
was mentioned by Mr. Martin.
Motion agreed to.
The Chairman: I think it has been customary for the departmental officials
and the minister primarily concerned to appear before committees only after all
the representations have been heard by the committee. As I indicated, that
has been done here, with the exception of Mr. Mundell. However, he did make
a contribution which was published in the Canadian Bar Review relating to the
former bill that was introduced in September, 1958, and it is fundamentally the
same as the bill that is now before the committee. So, his views, in general,
are already known to those of us who have read that article; and I presume,
that includes most, if not all of the members of the committee. In the circum
stances, as the Minister of Justice is available today, I am of the opinion that
we should now proceed to hear from the minister, and those of his officials he
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feels can be helpful to the committee, and deal with this bill specifically, but
withhold any final decision in regard to the bill until we shall have heard from
Mr. Mundell tomorrow.
If that is agreeable to the committee, as I assume it is, I shall now ask
Mr. Fulton to comment upon the representations which have been made before
the committee, and to give us the benefit of his study of the present bill.
Mr. Batten: I know that it is usual for the minister to appear last before
the committee, but under the present circumstances I do not see any reason the
minister should not proceed this morning, and we could hear from Mr. Mundell
tomorrow.
The Chairman: Thank you.
Hon. E. D. Fulton (Minister of Justice): Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
gentlemen. I appreciate the opportunity to be here. I have with me Mr. Driedger,
Q.C., deputy minister of the Department of Justice. Mr. Driedger, as you know,
has become deputy minister just recently, but he, and Mr. Jackett, the former
deputy minister, were the two officials of the department who had the primary
task of drafting the bill of rights.
I would like to express my appreciation of the work that has been put
into it.
You know that the problem of a bill of rights in Canada, in a federal
state, is not an easy one to solve; and I know also that it is not customary to
single out civil servants for commendation. I take the responsibility for any
weaknesses which may be in the bill. That is my responsibility, but I would
like to give them credit for most of the good things that are in the bill.
I am much impressed, and I would like to record before this committee
my feelings of gratification of the way in which they have been able to produce
a bill, as they were asked to do, which does, as I see it, solve this difficult
problem of the division of legislative authority in Canada.
It is, Mr. Chairman, as I understand it, customary at this stage to go
through the bill clause by clause and to direct questions to the minister and
the departmental officials on those clauses before they are carried.
I would imagine that you would want to follow the same general approach
this morning, but, as you have said, because Mr. Mundell will not appear
as a witness until tomorrow morning, it would not be appropriate actually
to carry the clauses, because it would seem to be discourteous to do so, since
we still have a witness to hear from.
But I would like to suggest for your consideration, therefore, that I might
be permitted to proceed as if the clauses were being called clause by clause,
and, perhaps, if you would care to call them we could consider them, and I
would be glad to deal with questions on the clauses until all the questions
that you want to ask have been asked and answered.
At that stage, if there are no more questions, I would suggest, without
formally carrying the clause, that you would let them stand to save going
all through the same process again. So, in effect, you will have gone through
the bill clause by clause, and after hearing from Mr. Mundell it should be
possible to carry each clause seriatim, if that is agreeable to you.
The Chairman: I wonder if you have any preliminary observations to
make before I call them? I think I should call them in their order, clause 1
first, and proceed from that point to the next one.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, I thing it would be more helpful to the committee if I
confined all my comments to the clauses by way of reply to questions. But
I would like to make some general observations, and I shall keep them as
brief as I can.
Perhaps I should make some in the light of the variety of suggestions,
comments, and indeed criticisms which have been made. I would like to
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emphasize first that the scheme of this bill of rights is to have a piece of
legislation which will be applicable only to the federal field of jurisdiction.
Within that scheme we have designed a bill of rights which will provide
complete coverage, and not only complete coverage with respect to all the
rights and freedoms that it is designed specifically to protect, but also com
plete coverage with respect to all branches of government.
It is well known to you that under our constitution and our constitutional
system there are three branches of government and I am not including the
crown as such. There is the legislative branch; there is the judicial branch,
and there is the executive branch. It was our design to see that our bill of
rights affected the whole ambit of all parts of government, as I have outlined
them. If you look at the bill, you will see this is done.
Clause 2 affects the legislature, and it is a declaration by the legislature
of the rights and freedoms that exist in Canada.
Clause 3 is an enactment by the legislature by way of a direction to the
judiciary as to how the judiciary will interpret all status of the legislature
heretofore or hereinafter to be enacted, as well as the orders and regulations
made under those statutes.
Clause 4 affects the executive. This is a directive to the Minister of Justice,
as a member of the executive, having the primary responsibility in this field.
It is a specific directive to him, imposing upon him certain obligations with
respect to ensuring that all subsequent bills and regulations decided upon shall
be, in so far as they lie within the power of the minister to do it, in conformity
with the bill of rights. When I say “in so far as they lie within the power of the
minister to do it,” I mean in so far as it is within his power, preserving still the
principle he is not a dictator over parliament, and that his powers are exercised
subject to the overriding rights of parliament, and control by parliament over
the executive. The scheme is as comprehensive as we can make it, not only with
respect to the field or rights, but with respect to all branches and parts of the
government within the federal field of jurisdiction. Then, with respect to the
question whether or not it is better to have the bill, as it is now—a statute, not
related specifically to the B.N.A. Act, or whether it should be by way of a con
stitutional amendment, meaning an amendment to the British North America
Act, I do not think I should say much more than has been said about the
problem of an amendment covering both provincial and federal fields of jurisdic
tion. The difficulties in that area have been discussed. Some witnesses have said
that it would be desirable, but I agree with those who have also said that
however desirable it might be, it does not seem to be possible at the present
time; so, let us get on with the bill of rights we can have.
I would like to deal with some of the arguments put forward as to the
proposal to amend the British North America Act, whether a comprehensive
amendment, or confined to section 91—to those within federal jurisdiction.
Those who put forward the view that it should be by way of a British North
America Act amendment do so under the impression that the bill of rights
would become entrenched and beyond the reach of any legislative authority in
parliament.
May I comment first on that, by saying the law is not entrenched, because
it happens to be contained within the British North America Act. There are a
number of laws have been passed by provincial legislatures and by the
parliament of Canada which, althought perhaps not ahvays expressed as
amendments to the British North America Act, have nevertheless changed the
law as contained in the British North America Act. So that it is on that basis,
first, that I say that merely putting something in the British North America
Act does not mean that it is entrenched, in the sense that it is beyond the
reach of parliament.
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The suggestion has been made that we might put it beyond the reach of
parliament by adding a section or subsection to the British North America Act
providing that “notwithstanding anything in this act” the parliament of
Canada should not have power to legislate in derogation of fundamental rights
and freedoms. But, again, I say that an amendment even in these terms would
not accomplish the desired result.
In the first place, section 91 of the British North America Act—and it is
here that the proponents of this point of view suggest it should go—confers
legislative authority “notwithstanding anything in this act.” Trat is right
in the opening words of section 91. Those words themselves would be sufficient
to give parliament power to override an additional clause that might be inserted
in section 91. So, if you wanted to put it in section 91 and do what you could
to entrench it there, no only would you have to amend section 91 by adding
the clause containing the bill of rights; but you would have to amend section
91 much further than that: you would have to delete, or alter the words now
appearing in section 91, “notwithstanding anything in this act.”
I would be very doubtful whether those who advocate this course would
really think that it was safe, desirable or proper to delete or alter those words
where they appear in the introductory words of section 91, because that would,
it seems to me, have the tendency of changing even what authority parliament
now has with respect to section 91 itself, the field of federal jurisdiction.
But even though it were argued that we should accept that course and
cut out the words where they now appear in section 91, “notwithstanding
anything in this act,” in order to entrench the bill of rights, I suggest that
even this would not place the bill of rights beyond the reach of the parliament
of Canada, because of the existence and effect of the Statute of Westminster.
Subsection (2) of section 2 of the Statute of Westminster, 1931, provides
as follows:
(2) No law and no provision of any law made after the commence
ment of this act by the parliament of a dominion shall be void or
inoperative on the ground that it is repugnant to the law of England,
or to the provisions of any existing or future act of parliament of the
United Kingdom, or to any order, rule or regulation made under any
such act, and the powers of the parliament of a dominion shall include
the power to repeal or amend any such act, order, rule or regulation
in so far as the same is part of the law of the dominion.
The foregoing provision has been extended to the provincial legislatures
by subsection (2) of section 7 of the Statute of Westminster, 1931, which
reads as follows:
(2) The provisions of section two of this act shall extend to laws
made by any of the provinces of Canada and to the powers of the
legislatures of such provinces.
So that a statute of the United Kingdom adding a new section to the
British North America Act would be subject to repeal or amendment by par
liament; and if the bill of rights in the British North America Act covered
the provincial field, it would also be subject to repeal by the provincial
legislatures.
Subsection ( 1 ) of section 7 of the Statute of Westminster excepts from
the operation of the foregoing provisions “the British North America acts,
1867 to 1930.” Any subsequent amendment to the British North America Act
is not included in the collection of acts known as the British North America
acts, 197 to 1930.
So that to entrench the bill of rights it would be necessary to amend also
the Statute of Westminster. This raises at least two problems, one of which is
political and the other legal. If you sought to put an amendment to the
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British North America Act beyond the reach of the parliament of Canada,
you could, as I see it, do it only by providing that that amendment incorporat
ing the bill of rights, which in this case I think would have to be done by the
United Kingdom parliament and could not be repealed or amended by the
parliament of Canada. As I say, it seems to me that to do this would involve
an amendment of the statute of Westminster, because that amendment to the
British North America Act would not be included in the group of enactments
known as the B.N.A. acts, 1867-1930 mentioned therein. In other words al
though the statute of Westminster gives us power in Canada to amend any
statute of the United Kingdom having application in Canada, except the
B.N.A. Acts of 1867-1930, we would be seeking an amendment to provide that
a statute of the United Kingdom having effect in Canada cannot be amended
by the parliament of Canada. So that, notwithstanding that the statute of
Westminster gives us the jurisdicition to amend statutes of the United King
dom, affectng Canada except within the group of B.N.A. Acts, 1867-1930,
we would be holding back that jurisdiction and depriving ourselves of the
right to amend such statutes of the parliament of the United Kingdom, thus
transferring jurisdiction and control of Canada, in a sense, back to the United
Kingdom parliament.
I am quite certain that even those who vehemently advocate the course
of constitutional amendment would not on reflection wish to take their argu
ment so far as to suggest that we amend the statute of Westminster to de
prive ourselves of the power of amending statutes of the United Kingdom
parliament having, application in Canada.
I would like to turn, Mr. Chairman, to the question of uncertainty. It
has been suggested that our bill is uncertain, particularly in respect of clause
2. The implication of these arguments is that it has so many uncertainties that
it should not be enacted. I think that everything that was said as criticism
along these lines has largely been answered by what was said by Professor
Lower, by Professor Cohen, and some others as well. I thought that their
submissions were a pretty complete refutation of the criticism that the bill
should not be proceeded with because it is so full of uncertainties.
May I make one or two points in addition. The words used in classe 2
are, as Professor Cohen pointed out, the traditional ones which one finds in
bills of rights—some of the classical ones, to use his expression, and some of
the modern ones, but the ones normally found in bills of rights. Why it should
be suggested that these words mean so much when they are contained in
the laws of other countries or when they are contained in international docu
ments, and mean so little when in our own law, is difficult for me to understand.
Furthermore, every law has uncertainties. If statutes could be written without
uncertainties we would no longer need the courts. Take the main statute which
forms the basis of our constitution itself, the British North America Act.
This act has been full of uncertainties. Is it any the less valuable as a consti
tutional document? I submit it is not, although it probably has been the sub
ject of more major litigation than any other statute in Canada.
Many volumes of judicial decisions have been rendered on questions
that arose under the British North America Act. Each of these decisions dealt
with some uncertainty and, in retrospect, we would have to say that at the time
of the passing of the British North America Act it was full of uncertainties;
but would anyone now suggest that the British North America Act should
not on that account have been enacted in 1867? There have been thousands of
judicial decisions on the United States bill of rights. Surely this is not an
argument that it should not have been enacted. We are again here dealing
with the question of uncertainties. We are comparing it with the B.N.A. Act in
that regard and we say that the fact that there are uncertainties does not render
the statute any less valuable or essential.
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I would like to say a word or two about whether it should become part
of the constitution. A good many of the arguments that have been made—or
the criticisms that have been made of our bill because it is, to use their words,
a mere statute instead of an amendment to the B.N.A. Act—have proceeded
on what I regard as the false assumption that only amendments to the B.N.A.
Act can be described as constitutional amendments and that only statutes
containing those amendments could be therefore described as constitutional
statutes. In my view this is quite erroneous. The constitution of Canada is
not only made up of the B.N.A. Act and its various amendments; it is made up
in addition of a large number of statutes, of conventions, customs and usages.
While I do not for a moment suggest that the basis of our constitution is
not the B.N.A. Act, I do suggest it is a very invalid assumption to say that
only the B.N.A. Act and its amendments can be properly described as our
constitution. It is certainly not a valid assumption to say that because this
bill is only a statute it will not form a part of the constitution of Canada, and
a very important part of the constitution of Canada when passed.
May I refer you to other statutes which are in the same category, and
I do not claim that this list is exhaustive. These are provisions affecting
our constitutional arrangements and affecting them vitally. I have never
heard it argued that they are of less solemnity, les validity, or are to be
deemed of lesser account by parliament or by the courts, because they are
mere statutes, than would be the case if they were Senate and House of
Commons Act, the Supreme Court Act, the Exchequer Court Act, the
Canada Elections Act, the Representation Act, the Judges Act. The Governor
General’s Act is a statute of parliament under which the Governor General
is made a corporation sole and under which it is provided he may be
sued in the name of his office, that succession falls not to his special
representative, and which fixes his salary. This enactment outlining the
terms under which the head of our state, the representative of the crown in
Canada, holds his office, is a mere statute; but it would be absurd to say that
because it is a mere statute it is not part of the constitution of Canada. I
should doubt that that argument would be maintained. Other such statutes
are the Northwest Territories Act, the Yukon Act, the Royal Style and Titles
Act, the Speaker of the House of Commons Act, the speaker of the Senate
Act, and the Succession to the Throne Act.
When you take these, which I say is not by any means an exhaustive list,
and put them all together, it seems to me that it is an absurdity, in the light
of that, for anyone to say that the constitution of Canada is contained only in
the British North America Act and its amendments. It follows that it is, I
think, amply demonstrated, that vital and fundamental parts of our consti
tutional arrangement are contained in the B.N.A. act, and others of these
other statutes, such as I have listed, which are mere statutes of the parliament
of Canada,—if you want to call them mere statutes, as the critics of this bill
have called them. So the fact that our bill of rights recognizes the division
of constitutional authority in Canada is not embodied in the B.N.A. act,
but is submitted to parliament for enactment as a statute of parliament, does
not in any way vitiate its validity, its solemnity, or its effectiveness as part of
the constitution of Canada which, in my submission, it will be after its enact
ment.
The other point that I thought I might refer to briefly is the question
whether or not the bill, particularly clause 2, encroaches on provincial rights.
In my view, this might almost be said to be a legal impossibility. No
statute passed by the parliament of Canada can encroach on provincial rights
which are vested to the provinces under the B.N.A. act. The B.N.A. act makes
that impossible. If the clause is valid, it does not encroach, and if it is not valid,
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it certainly cannot encroach in that case either. This argument, it seems to me,
is based again upon misconception, and that is the misconception that property
and civil rights, and the entire jurisdiction over property and civil rights, is
vested in the provinces. This is not the case. Practically every aspect of
section 91 involves some aspect of property and civil rights, but this is the
property and civil rights aspect under the jurisdiction of the dominion. If you
look at section 92, you will see that jurisdiction of the province, with respect
to property and civil rights, under head 13, is with respect to property and
civil rights in the province. Since property and civil rights are so inextricably
interwoven with many of the heads in section 91, where property and civil
rights are affected under the heads of section 91, it is property and civil rights
in the dominion field that are under the jurisdiction of the dominion parlia
ment. Property and civil rights in the provincial field, however, are exclusively
under the jurisdiction of the provinces. So, of course, our bill may have some
effect with regard to property and civil rights, but it can only have effect
with regard to these aspects of property and civil rights which are held within
federal jurisdiction.
Mr. Macdonnell: Would you give us an illustration?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, bankruptcy and insolvency ; patents on inventions and
discovery; copyrights; Indian land reserved for Indians; navigation and ship
ping; bills of exchange and promissory notes, and so on.
There has also been some discussion in regard to the meaning of the
words “in Canada’ in this clause. I would say that the declaration in clause 2
is effective throughout the whole area, geographical and legal, over which
the parliament of Canada has jurisdiction. Thus, in relation to all of the
enumerated heads of section 91, the law extends over the whole geographical
area of Canada, and over the whole field of jurisdiction in relation to the
subject matter. But, as I said at the beginning of this part of my remarks, the
law does not have, and cannot have, since it is a law of the parliament of
Canada and is expressed to be confined to matters and statutes under the
legislative jurisdiction of the parliament of Canada, any effect of encroachment
on provincial jurisdiction. It is possible, as Professor Cohen, I think, par
ticularly, argued, that it may have a persuasive effect, and it may have an
indirect effect, in that it may tend to lead provinces or those administering
and interpreting provincial laws, along certain lines which are said be in the
bill of rights. That may be so: but believing, as I do, in the bill of rights, I
think that would be a result not to be complained of. But it can only do it
by indirection; it can only do it by attraction. In my view it cannot do it
directly, or by compulsion.

Mr. Dorion: It cannot be a judicial result, but can only be by indirection,
you are saying.
Mr. Fulton: Yes. I am not referring to the discussion in regard to what
the Supreme Court of Canada may continue to do by way of development
of policy, or a policy respecting fundamental rights in Canada. I am referring
to the criticism that this Bill impinges on provincial jurisdiction.
M. Macdonnell: Would it be an exaggeration to say that it would be
practically a contradiction in terms? The dominion cannot do it, and therefore,
if it purports to do it, it is practically a contradiction in terms to say that it
is an infringement?

Mr. Fulton: I agree with you.
The Chairman: May I just interrupt at this moment, to welcome Mr.
Macdonnell May I ask the consent of the committee to afford Mr. Macdonnell,
who has followed the proceedings of this committee very closely, and perhaps
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as well as many of the members of the committee, the courtesy of being able
to ask questions as we proceed?

Some Hon. Members: Agreed.
Mr. Deschatelets: Before we go on, Mr. Chairman, what is the procedure
we are following now? Are we going to question as we go along, or are we
going to wait until the minister has finished his statement? I would prefer
that the minister finish before we question him.
Mr. Fulton: I shall not be much longer, Mr. Deschatelets. I wanted to
conclude with some general remarks, and I understood we would then
proceed with a clause by clause consideration.
Mr. Deschatelets: I would have liked to make another suggestion, Mr.
Chairman, that as soon as the minister is over with this statement or exposition,
perhaps we could have the time to think it over before putting questions, or
maybe at another sitting.
Mr. Fulton : I would like, Mr. Chairman, to turn to the question of whether
anything hinges on the fact that clause 2 is in the form of a declaration. It
has been suggested that as clause 2 is only a declaration it does not operate
as law. May I direct your attention, and that of those persons who make
this criticism, to section 91 of the British North America Act, which is only
a declaration. That section in its introductory paragraph, contains these words:
—and for greater certainty, but not so as to restrict the generality of
the foregoing terms of this section, it is hereby declared that (notwith
standing anything in this act) the exclusive legislative authority of the
parliament of Canada extends to all matters coming within the classes
of subjects next hereinafter enumerated—
So as not to make a partial or apparently misleading argument, I should
put it on the record, that in the earlier part of the introductory paragraph it
is stated:
It shall be lawful for the Queen, by and with the advice and consent
of the Senate and House of Commons, to make laws for the peace, order,
and good government of Canada, in relation to all matters not coming
within the classes of subjects by this act assigned exclusively to the
legislatures of the provinces;—
But when it comes to defining what are those classes of subjects, in so far
as it is desired to define them in the statute, it is declared that these are the
classes of subjects coming exclusively within the jurisdiction of the federal
parliament. It seems to me that a purported criticism, based on the fact that
ours is expressed to be a declaration of the rights and freedoms existing in
Canada, is met completely and answered fully by the fact that our basic
constitutional document defines those things which fall exclusively within
federal jurisdiction by way of a declaration. That declaration has the force of
law in the B.N.A. Act, and, in my submission, the declaration in the bill of
rights would have equally the force of law.
Also objection is taken to the fact that we declare that these rights have
always existed. May I just outline to you some of our thinking behind that
provision?
It is my view that one of the primary purposes of parliament—one of them
—is to protect the rights and freedoms of the citizens of Canada. It seemed
to me it would be a presumption, if not for parliament itself, then, certainly,
for the government, to suggest that parliament should create the very rights
and freedoms which it is our obligation to protect. It seems to me it would be a
presumption for us to say that now, by this bill of rights, we are creating the
rights and freedoms enumerated thereunder. It seems to me, not only would it
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be a presumption, but I believe it would be an absurdity. These rights and
freedoms have existed in Canada. They are our traditional rights and freedoms;
and it was on that basis that we used the words:
It is hereby recognized and declared that in Canada there have
always existed and shall continue to exist the following human rights
and fundamental freedoms—
Mr. Chairman, I am quite prepared to admit that there is room within that
general approach for a difference of opinion as to whether we are going too
far when we use the word “always”. I do not apologize for the use of the
word, because it is a word, I think, which does give expression to the principle
which I have enunciated, namely, that these rights and freedoms do not come
into existence today, but they have existed in Canada.
I have an open mind as to whether we should solve that problem of
expression by the deletion of the word “always”, or by substitution therefor
of the word “heretofore” or “hitherto”, or some such word.
As a personal opinion, I am inclined to think that if you wish to make a
change—if you think the word “always” goes too far—the word “hitherto”
would probably be as good a word as you could find in substitution.
It would also have—and I say this for those of my friends who think we
should use ringing language—a nice sonorous effect:
It is hereby recognized and declared that in Canada there have
hitherto existed and shall continue to exist—
But I put that out as a personal opinion only, and wish to make it clear that
we shall be glad to have representations of the committee as to whether, in
fact, you think we should take out the word “always,” or whether you think
we should substitute something for it; and, if so, what word you think would
be the best word to use under the circumstances.
There is one other criticism that I want to deal with; and then I have two
more general observations to make.
The one I refer to now is that there are no sanctions so described in the
bill. Again, I think the suggestion that the bill of rights should contain sanctions
is a misconception of the purpose and functions of a bill of rights. A bill of
rights constitutes the framework within which the legislature, the judiciary
and executive must operate. If there is a violation by a legislative body the
courts will not enforce or give effect to that violation. If there is a violation
by a state official or an individual against another individual, the remedy lies
in the field of substantive law. And we are creating, or are declaring
substantive law.
In this respect the bill of rights, as it stands today, is no different from
many other statutes in that it leaves it to the courts to protect or to restore
to an individual any rights, as defined in the bill of rights, which he may be
able to establish have been taken away from him or have been abused or
infringed. In this respect, in leaving it to the courts, we are but following
the sound, well established legal and jurisprudential tradition within the field
of what Professor Cohen described as Anglo-Canadian tradition.
I simply draw the parallel with civil actions for assault, trespass, and other
torts, and with the recourse to the courts for alleged infringements of the
Criminal Code, and the procedures followed there. You do not have a govern
ment official saying, “You have committed an assault,” or “You have committed
an infraction of the Criminal Code and, therefore, I will subject you to certain
penalties.” That would be an atrocious departure from the principle of our law,
which is based upon the inviolable principle or a principle that should be
inviolate, that it is not the executive that decides whether infractions have been
committed, but it is the courts which interpret our laws and decide whether or
not they have been breached or violated.
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Finally the question has been raised as to the effect of the bill of rights
on statutes already enacted. May I say, in passing, that one of the reasons why
we determined against an amendment to the BNA Act is that we did desire,
and I believe we have succeeded, to give this bill of rights an effect with
respect to statutes previously enacted.
This is one case where the government is prepared, and indeed advocates,
the enactment of a statute having a retroactive effect.
It does seem to me and to the two or three witnesses I have questioned
on this point who agreed wih my point of view, that it is inappropriate to
make a constitutional amendment in the sense of amending the British North
America Act having a retroactive effect.
First of all it would create a great problem of draftsmanship, and we
have enough problems of draftsmanship here. I do not want to retreat from
my argument that this bill, when enacted, will be a constitutional document
or statute of Canada; but I want to talk about the appropriateness of a measure
having a retroactive effect being inserted in the British North America Act itself.
It seems to me that it is neither appropriate nor is it really feasible from
the drafting point of view.
Now, with regard to the question of the extent of this effect on statutes
previously enacted, this we quite admit does create a problem. I was entirely
in agreement with the point of view expressed yesterday by Professor Cohen,
that it posed a grave risk; but we believe that the problems, difficulties and
risks which may be encountered are worth taking, because of the effect, and
that they are justified by the effect we desire to produce.
We do desire, so far as we can, to present a provision which will have
the maximum effect of bringing past statutes into line, and bringing the prac
tices thereunder into line with the spirit and principle of the bill of rights.
While we did not examine minutely every existing act and section on our
statute books, we did go through the whole of our statute law and we selected
those which seemed to be most likely to be affected, and we considered the
effect that the bill of rights would have.
We saw that there would be some risks, some problems, and perhaps some
accomplishments, but we thought that it would work out all to the good. If
the courts should hold on a subsequent occasion when this bill has been
enacted that the practices carried on under existing statutes arc in contravention
of the spirit or letter of the bill of rights, it is entirely desirable that that
effect should be "brought out, and that we should then face it, and that par
liament should then have an opportunity to decide whether those practices
should be continued.
Parliament should decide whether it poses such administrative problems
for the government that in the view of parliament the practice should be
sanctioned anew, or whether administrative inconvenience should be accepted
in order that the practices which are contrary to the spirit of the bill of rights
shall cease to be followed.
We shall be quite happy to have that situation prevail, once this bill
becomes law, and the final decision as to what will be done as à result of the
opinions of the courts or the findings of the courts will rest in the hands of
parliament.
The government will not have any authority to give the dicision of the
courts for the sake of administrative convenience; it will rest with parliament
to decide whether the executive may or may not carry on the impugned prac
tice, and whether or not the legislation is to be amended to permit it. And
that is the result that we desire to produce.
Mr. Chairman, I think that that concludes the general observations that
I thought it would be appropriate for me to make.
23572-1—2
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Mr. Deschatelets: Have you any observations to make on the War Mea
sures Act?
The Chairman: I wonder if I could direct your attention to a suggestion
that came from more than one source. I think it is something which would be
appropriate to be dealt with by way of a general observation. It is the sug
gestion that either there should be set up in your department as a section or
branch, a committee to deal with grievances of individuals and organizations,
or that a committee of laymen might be set up. I know that is not covered
under the present bill, but that suggestion was made, and I think, if you are
prepared at the moment to deal with the matter, the committee would be
interested to have your comment.
Mr. Fulton: I would be glad to deal with it in general at this time, but
I have not got all my material ready, and I would appreciate not being pressed
into too much detail until we come to clause 4. However I would be glad to
deal with it in general, and to deal with the question which Mr. Deschatelets
asked me about the Wear Measures Act.
There are some areas, I think, Mr. Chairman, where we do have to proceed
by slow steps, if you like, by the process of trial and error.
Frankly, I think this is an area of the authority and the responsibility
that should be imposed upon the minister of justice or upon the department
of Justice. It is one of those areas.
We have, as minister, and in the department, overall responsibility for
drafting all government legislation; and we draft a good many of the regula
tions made under those statutes, and we scrutinize all that are drafted, whether
or not we do the drafting ourselves; so that without any change at all it could
be argued that the desire to ensure that all subsequent statutes and regulations
are in conformity with the bill of rights is covered, simply because of the
present system and responsibility of the department, as I have outlined it.
We felt that we should go a little further, however, and not leave it as an
unwritten arrangement which happens to be in effect now, but that there
should be a specific repsonsibility given to the Minister of Justice to ascertain
that all subsequent statutes and so on are in conformity with the bill of rights.
I have already alluded to the difficulty which we felt arose from the use
of the words in the earlier draft bill “to ensure”; “the Minister of Justice shall
ensure”, and it seemed to us that this carried with it a necessity to have the
Minister of Justice ensure.
Now, if you are going to use the words “shall ensure”, you must also
accept the fact that he must make it absolutely certain that nothing contravenes
the bill of rights in a statute or regulation, and that he has that responsibility.
And if you want to go that far, then I think that parliament should face
the concurrent question of what steps you are prepared to take to give the
Minister of Justice authority to do that which you have instructed him to do,
because he cannot discharge a responsibility as far-reaching as that, without,
in my view, some addition, and some appreciable addition to his authority.
And, as I said yesterday, I doubt very much if parliament would want to go
so far as to say the Minister of Justice shall have the right to say what bills
and in what form they will be introduced into parliament; that is to say, par
ticularly, with respect to bills which may be introduced by private members—
non-governmental bills. It was for that reason we took out the word “ensure”
and substituted the word “ascertain”—and I discussed, either yesterday, or the
day before, how I visualized the minister and his department acting under those
words, by way of a report to parliament, as to whether or not, in his view,
the legislative proposals introduced did conform to the bill of rights. And
then, of course, it will be the duty—and, now, a statutory duty—imposed on the
minister to ascertain and, I believe, to report to the same effect, with respect
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to government legislative proposals and regulations. Now, the machinery by
which that report to parliament is presented is one which, quite frankly, we
have not attempted to cover in this bill. This is one on which I say we have to
proceed by trial and error—step by step. It may be that it will be desired that
the minister present a written report at the time the bill is given first reading,
or that he should make an oral report, or that it be deferred until the bill comes
up for second reading, when the principle is under debate. These are questions
on which I have no closed mind. It seems to me it will be my responsibility to
work out the steps—the proceedings, by which the duty placed upon me under
section 4 is discharged, and how parliament is informed as to my discharge
of those responsibilities. But, I have felt that it would not be desirable at the
present time to cover that in detail in a statute.
With regard to the commission of laymen, as suggested by Professor Cohen,
and with regard to the ombudsman approach which others have referred to,
we have studied these matters. You will recall that when I questioned Professor
Cohen as to whether his commission of laymen would review proceedings
under the Criminal Code or would confine its review to reviews of administra
tive actions, he felt that the latter, initially, at any rate, would be the proper
course. And, I agreed with him. I am not certain that you should set up this
commission. I think, again, we should see how things develop before we commit
ourselves to too many steps along this line. And, I do that for this reason—
and this applies either to the suggestion of a commission or an ombudsman;
we do have divided constitutional jurisdictions in Canada, and we have divided
responsibilities with respect to even criminal law. Our pattern—and I believe
it is now so firmly established it can be called a constitutional pattern—is:
whereas parliament has exclusive jurisdiction to enact and amend the criminal
law, the provinces have the responsibility for enforcing that law. It has been
universally admitted that a great deal of territory covered by the bill of rights
is embraced within the provisions and procedures of criminal law. Therefore,
you have the position that much of what the bill of rights is concerned with is
with respect to enforcement. Much of the field covered by the bill of rights in
so far as it is included in the Criminal Code, or. in so far as it impinges on the
Criminal Code, is within a field where the enforcement of the Criminal Code is
the responsibility of the provinces. And, I am thinking it would create very
grave difficulties now, if parliament were to set up a reviewing body—at least
on such terms that persons, who find themselves proceeded against under the
Criminal Code could then appeal to a body under the jurisdiction of parliament
for review or suggested redress, because you would have a position where the
provincial authorities responsible for the enforcement of the Criminal Code
have taken certain action, and you really would be in a position where what
they had done, or the results of what they had done, as applied by the courts,
was then appealed to a federal reviewing authority outside the courts, but set
up under the jurisdiction of the federal parliament. And, in addition to that,
may I remind you again that our principle and tradition, with regard to
criminal law, in so far as its enforcement is concerned, is that the provinces
have the initial responsibility for this enforcement. The courts, in the first
instance, have the responsibility of deciding whether there has been a con
travention—a breach, of the Criminal Code; and then if it is alleged there has
been an error—that a person is improperly convicted,—the remedy is provided
by way of an appeal to the provincial court of appeal and, ultimately, under
certain conditions, to the Supreme Court of Canada. That is a well established
and very well worked out system and, in my submission, a system which is
very effective in protecting the rights of individuals in accordance with the
provisions and traditions of our criminal law. And, I would think we must be
very careful not to get ourselves in the position of setting up a tribunal—a
23572-1—2*
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non-judicial tribunal, under the authority of the parliament of Canada, which
would find itself, in effect, being asked to review the decisions, and findings of
the court. I think this has in it so much danger of subverting our principle of
criminal justice, in so far as the independence of the judiciary is concerned,
and the courts, that it is a step I would recommend only after very lengthy
consideration, and then it would be a step that must be hedged about, with the
greatest of care, and circumspection, to ensure, in fact, it is not an attack upon
courts and an attempt to substitute the judgment of a non-judicial body set up
by parliament for the judgment of the courts. That is, therefore, one of the
difficulties which has persuaded us that we should not, at the moment, go
specifically into a legislative enactment providing for a reviewing tribunal.
Having said that however, and having in effect, suggested that we could not
reserve the area of the Criminal Code, at least for the time being, I am pre
pared to consider any suggestions that may be made with respect to establishing
a process of review for administering acts within the field of the federal
government although I remind you, ministers have a responsibility now to see
that their acts and the acts of their officials are in accord with the law which
gives them their authority.
Those laws will now be in accord with the bill of rights, and I remind you,
in addition, that where there is a complaint of an infraction, we now have a
bill of rights under which the person complaining could have recourse to the
courts. This is one of the great objects and accomplishments of the bill of
rights, which makes it, shall I say, less essential to have an additional review
authority set up by parliament.
However, I said I wanted only to discuss this in general at the moment,
and I think I should conclude my discussion at this point and say that we
shall review carefully what was said by the various witnesses and shall, of
course, consider and review extremely carefully anything that may be suggested
by this committee.
The Chairman: Mr. Minister, I wonder if you would say a word or two
about the War Measures Act?
Mr. Fulton: Yes. I will now deal with the War Measures Act. I do not
think, Mr. Chairman, that I can add very much to what I said when questioning
Professor Lower the day before yesterday, when I pointed out to him that the
main purpose for which we introduced this provision in clause 6 of the bill
was so as to make it impossible for any government to set aside and set at
naught a bill of rights by a declaration that there exists a state of war, invasion
or insurrection, real or apprehended, thus invoking the War Measures Act,
with all its sweeping emergency powers, and thus setting aside the bill of
rights, in circumstances where in fact there was no proper foundation for such a
declaration.
What we have been prepared to do, in other words, is to prevent a govern
ment from circumventing the bill of rights, by invoking the War Measures Act
when there existed no real emergency justifying that invocation.
When I pointed this out to Professor Lower, he modified his stand, if you
will recall, in which he said that really we were doing nothing in this field at
all. He admitted this was an important step forward. He also agreed with me
that it is a responsibility of government to have available certain emergency
powers which they can rely upon and use in times of real emergency, such
as would be represented by a real state of war or a really imminent state
of war.
That being the case, we have felt that it is the proper course to provide,
first, that no government can rely upon a “phony” declaration of emergency,
if I may use that word, so as to circumvent the bill of rights, because parliament
is now to be given the right to review that declaration. Having done that,
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having thus ensured that the bill of rights cannot be set aside except on
justifiable grounds, the justification being a real state of emergency, we then
feel that we can take more leisure to review the War Measures Act itself and
to take into account the various suggestions made to us as to the changes and
the direction of the changes in the War Measures Act.
The Chairman: I think, gentlemen, we should adjourn at this point.
The minister has indicated that it would suit his convenience to return to
the committee at 2.30. Might I suggest, sir, that nothing has been said yet
about a preamble, and perhaps you could deal with that when we return
at 2.30.

Mr. Fulton: Yes, I will be glad to.
Mr. Aiken: With a suggested draft.
AFTERNOON SESSION
'

Friday, July 22, 1960.

2:30 p.m.
The Chairman: We now have a quorum.
Will you continue, Mr. Minister.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Before we proceed, I regret that I was not
here this morning. It was due to a misunderstanding. Mr. Badanai and I
understood there was no meeting. I understand that certain business matters
were dealt with. I do not want to interrupt the Minister of Justice in his
interrogation. I am anxious to participate in that myself. I am, however, a
little concerned about the decision taken this morning about having no further
representations. Will we have an opportunity in the full committee to discuss
the business of the committee either today or tomorrow morning rather than
hold up the Minister of Justice at this stage? For instance, I would like to
know the kind of invitation which was sent. One witness who has been on the
telephone to me explained that he was asked to be here on a certain day.
I do not think he had any time to be ready.
My primary concern now is when we should discuss the business of the
committee as a whole.
The Chairman: I think it is most unfortunate, Mr. Martin, that you were
not here this morning. If there was a misunderstanding I regret it very much;
but I myself feel there was no cause for misunderstanding. Two other mem
bers of your party were here. A decision had to be reached yesterday in as
much as we had meetings scheduled for today and had no one desiring to
appear before the committee. We did have one person who indicated a desire to
appear but he could not do so yesterday. He indicated he would be able to
appear before the committee tomorrow morning.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is Mr. Mundell. I just saw him upstairs
and he told me that.
The Chairman: We had to decide whether we were going to be idle
with nothing to do today or whether it might be possible to proceed to hear
the minister.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am not objecting to that.
The Chairman: Naturally, the minister does not wish to appear before
this committee until it has exhausted hearing all those who wish to appear
before the committee. The matter was left in abeyance until the steering
committee determined whether or not there was any feeling that an effort
should be made to interest others in appearing before the committee, apart
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from those who had come forward and the very lengthy number of individuals
and organizations which you had suggested should be contacted in order to
determine whether or not they cared to appear. I made a report in that
respect this morning. I do not recall the number, but I would guess offhand
that there must have been forty individuals or organizations canvassed.
Certainly, speaking for myself, I cannot conceive of any viewpoint which has
not already been advanced to the committee in connection with this bill; there
might be, but I do not see any reason why this committee should be held up
while we scurry around to see whether or not there is anybody else who might
come before this committee. We have eighteen million people in this country
and I have no doubt that we could find many who would express a desire to
appear before this committee. I think this committee has gone a long way in
hearing representations by individuals who represent nobody but themselves.
We have contacted a great many organizations. There is considerable feeling
that representations in any event should be confined to national organizations
and not even provincial organizations. I think it is a matter of reasonableness.
I am sure that if we wanted to pursue the matter and each individual member
of the committee made it his business to go out and induce people to come
before the committee we could very well prolong these sittings for the rest
of the summer.
The Chairman: I do not think any useful purpose would be served.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I think we should deal with this after the
meeting. I would ask if you will be good enough to tell me what you told the
committee this morning. I was not here. I did not know of the meeting.
Mr. Badanai, who is our representative on the steering committee, was not at
the meeting.
The Chairman: Mr. Badanai was at the committee meeting last night.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I am not challenging that, but the fact is that we
are meeting with great difficulty with our many preoccupations in the House of
Commons. I do not want to go over that argument again, but that is the fact.
I would be content, for the moment, if after this meeting you and I could review
the matter so that I could see what the situation is. For instance, I have a wire
from the Catholic syndicates, an organization of labour in the province of
Quebec. I have several others. I think the best way for us to solve the problem
is for you and I to meet and review the situation after the meeting. I want to do
this in the most reasonable way possible. I do not think this committee has
taken too long a time in examining this bill. There are people who think that
they should come before this committee and I would like to know, for instance,
the people who have made representations during the past two years in respect
of this bill of rights, and how many of them have been given an opportunity to
attend. I do not say we should have them all, but there are one or two I would
like to discuss with you.
I just raise this question now because I would like to ask you if we could
meet at the end of the meeting to review this matter, and then you could report
back to the committee.
The Chairman: I think it is very unfair to the minister to ask him to deal
with this bill, as he proposed to deal with it, and then leave it open to have you,
or anybody else, go out and solicit somebody to come before the committee,
especially when the purpose of calling the minister was to finalize this.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I do not think it will affect his judgment.
The Chairman: I feel that it is very strange in view of all the publicity
that this bill has received, and when it was debated three days in the House
of Commons, that there should be persons interested in appearing before the
committee who have not contacted the committee in any way.
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Mr. Martin (Essex Eclsî): I do not agree with that at all.
The Chairman: Other organizations have contacted the committee. There

was no difficulty in that regard. I have received letters, as well as the secretary,
and I am rather surprised that someone is going out of his way to solicit
individuals to appear before the committee.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I can only take that remark as meaning you
yourself possibly had that in mind. I do not think anybody else did. There
certainly is nothing inappropriate in trying to bring witnesses in refutation of
particular points of the bill. I am not referring to the minister’s statement, but I
think it is open for any member of this committee to suggest, after we have
heard the minister, after he has proceeded now to review the bill clause by
clause, that other individuals should be called to deal with this. I understand
that the plan this afternoon, after we have interrogated the minister in respect
of the statement which I understand he made this morning, and which I have
got a full report of, he proposes to examine the bill clause by clause.
The Chairman: Exactly.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is not our arrangement. That is an arrange

ment that has been suggested. If your argument is sound, it certainly should not
be open to the minister to do this until Mr. Mundell has appeared before the
committee. He is coming tomorrow morning. If the minister feels that he is in
any way prejudiced on that account, he ought to review the bill clause by clause
after all witnesses have appeared.
Mr. Rapp: Mr. Chairman, we approved of this procedure unanimously
this morning. We approved of the order which we are to follow today and
tomorrow. There was no objection made by anyone present. This procedure
was agreed to unanimously.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I may say that I did not know of this meeting
this morning.
Mr. Rapp: Yes, but members present here agreed to this procedure
unanimously.
The Chairman: Pardon me, gentlemen.
Mr. Martin, may J say that if you did not know about the meeting, I
am sure you were not advised that the meeting was cancelled.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): No.
The Chairman: A notice was sent out to every member of the committee
yesterday that this committee would meet this morning at 9.30. What disturbs
me is: how long are members of this committee going to be permitted to
continue to bring before this committee names of people to be contacted?
The hon. member himself, Mr. Martin, presented a list of some 40
individuals, as I recall it, a week ago Thursday. All these people were con
tacted. After we made all the arrangements, in order to accommodate them,
this committee was kept idle last Saturday, when—
Mr. Martin (Essex East): This committee should not have been called
for last Saturday.
The Chairman: —when we had set up a meeting for Saturday. So we
carried on into this week, and we exhausted that panel.
Now, after we exhausted the panel you, Mr. Martin, come in to the com
mittee, and even today you have not mentioned anyone specifically, but indicate
you had some kind of conversation or letter.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I told you I had a telephone call from someone
on behalf of the Catholic syndicate, a very large labour organization. They want
to know if they are going to have an opportunity of appearing before the
committee.
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Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): On a point of order, Mr. Chairman,
it seems to me that this is a question that has already been decided on today;
and we are going to be repetitious if we are going to open it up again. It
was the unanimous decision of the committee this morning to get the matter
closed, and we are wasting time if we discuss it again.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): No matter is closed by the committee, and the

committee, at any time, has the right to reverse its decision. If we are going
to have an exhaustive examination of the bill, we should have an open mind
on it.
I would like to know, for instance, when the wire was sent to individuals
when they were told they had to appear by such and such a day, within such
and such a time.
The Chairman: May I say, in the spirit of cooperation, Mr. Martin, I would
like to give you the information. I do think there were other occasions when it
could have been obtained.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I suggest you and I might meet after this
meeting.
The Chairman: Long before this meeting today.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am not looking for anything unusual, but

merely my rights as a member of this committee.
The Chairman: Your party has a representative on the steering committee,
and I think that everything done by the steering committee was done to the
satisfaction of the representative of your party on that committee.
I have no objection to wasting a little more time, giving you these details,
which I think you could have obtained from your representative on the sub
committee.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : You are not wasting any time to recognize the
rights of a member.
The Chairman: In my opinion you are; and you and I do not agree on
that point.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is just one of the many things.
The Chairman: What the subcommittee did, after this list was submitted
by you—and not in the steering committee, but the open committee, which I
think is not the proper procedure—Mr. Martin (Essex East) : That is the right place.
The Chairman: That is your opinion, not mine.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is the practice.
The Chairman: I do not know what purpose the steering committee has,
because we appointed a subcommittee on agenda and procedure. If that means
anything at all it means exactly the thing we are discussing now.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I will bow to your greater experience in this
matter, Mr. Chairman, but let me tell you it has always been the practice in
parliamentary committees that a steering committee is set up for the purpose
of arranging the agenda. It then discusses the agenda with the whole committee,
which makes the decision. It is not the steering committee that makes the
decision.
The Chairman: Of course, and that is exactly the way in which the
steering committee conducted itself. It considered these things and came to a
conclusion and brought its recommendations to the general committee, and
that recommendation has been adopted. That is the only manner in which this
committee operated.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): The only time business was discussed in open
committee was this morning.
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The Chairman: I beg to differ with that.
Mr. Stewart: That is not so. We discussed it for two meetings when
we met in the Senate room.
Mr. Badanai: Perhaps I should say a word, being the representative on
the steering committee.
Last night we met and decided, after we had adjusted all those who wished
to appear before the committee. I agreed, we having no one else to appear
with the exception of Mr. Mundell, who will appear here on Saturday morning,
that we would hear from the Minister of Justice.
My misunderstanding was I did not know the minister was appearing this
morning, and I conveyed to Mr. Martin the wrong information this morning,
unknowingly of course. But, on the other hand, I fully agree that we can
hear all those who agree to appear before this committee, after they were
all invited.
We invited a lot of people who did not wish to appear. Therefore I am
in full agreement with the committee.
The Chairman: May I just give Mr. Martin the additional information.
As I indicated, the committee first of all set up meetings for Thursday, Friday
and Saturday of last week, and sent out wires to numberless individuals and
organizations advising them that committee meetings were presently set up
for those three days, and inquiring as to whether or not they wished to make
representations, and as to the time that would meet their convenience.
. As a result of that, we did have meetings on Thursday and Friday, but
we did not have anybody available for Saturday.
^
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is the very point I am making.
The Chairman: After you brought in your list, we sent wires to the ones
which you listed. They read as follows:
Special committee on human rights and fundamental freedoms will
continue consideration of Bill C-70 next week.
This is dated July 18, and that would be this week.
Do you wish to make representations to the committee stop If so
please wire by Monday noon and indicate convenient date.
We set Monday noon because we had set up a meeting of the steering
committee for Monday afternoon, and we hoped to have answers to those
wires available for the steering committee meeting by Monday noon.
We did receive replies from a great many of them, some expressing a
willingness to come, some expressing a lack of interest, and some expressing
the opinion that since others had advanced their points, they therefore saw
no need to come.
Some sent in - written briefs only which were received by the steering
committee and reported to the main committee and dealt with.
This was the wire, and I am sure there was nowhere in that wire an
indication that the committee had set any limitation as to the time of the
sittings of the committee.
It was simply a request to give indication to this committee as to whether
or not they desired to come before the committee.
Therefore I do not know what more the steering committee or this com
mittee, or I as chairman, could do.
Mr. Deschatelets: If you will permit me, Mr. Chairman, I do not think
we have had any serious discussion about what happened this morning; but
we are facing a new development here, when Mr. Martin informs us that
so large an organization, and so important a one, would be ready to appear
before this committee.
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This is something we were not aware of this morning; so, that being the
case, what is the decision of the committee. Is there any possibility that we
could invite these people who, apparently, are ready to appear before us,
apparently within a few days?
Mr. Stewart: They do not indicate that.
Mr. Dorion: I would like to know from Mr. Martin if he received from
that organization representations to the effect that they wished to appear
before the committee.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I was asked whether or not there would still
be an opportunity; I had indicated two days ago to them that I thought there
was, and I had no idea we were going to conclude our sittings so immediately.
It was only when I heard that the minister wanted to go over the bill
clause by clause before any representations were made that I thought I had
better deal with the situation.
I simply want to put on the record now the fact that I register my opposi
tion to these wires. This bill was brought in, in the dying days of the session,
and this committee was set up at a time when people are away on holidays.
I think on that account we have to extend to bodies who would like to make
representations a greater opportunity for doing so than we have done.
I am not criticizing the chairman. He was acting within the time limits
under which we are all working. But, for the time being, I want to register
that objection.
Mr. Dorion: Am I to understand that that organization did not make a
request at all to appear?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I was asked if there would be an opportunity
for them to come, and I am going to convey to them now the decision in this
matter.
The Chairman: Why did you not ask them if they desired to appear,
instead of leaving it suspended in the air?
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): I would like to know whether this
organization is a member of the Canadian labour congress?
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : No.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway) : What is the organization again?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Syndicats Catholiques.
The Chairman: Is the organization to which you have referred the Cana
dian Catholic conference of labour?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I know them as Syndicats Catholiques.
Mr. Dorion: Their real name is Confédération des Travailleurs Catholiques
du Canada.
The Chairman: I believe they were sent a wire.
Mr. Dorion: It is the Catholic federation of Canadian workers.
Mr. Fulton: Is that the same thing as the Canadian Catholic conference?
Mr. Stewart: The same thing.
The Chairman: We sent a wire to Mr. Gerard Pelletier.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): At what address?
The Chairman: Of the Canadian Catholic conference of labour, Montreal:
Is that the same?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What date was that wire?
The Chairman: July 18.
Mr. Dorion: He is one of their legal counsel.
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Mr. Stewart: Just for clarification, did we receive any wires asking for
any time in advance for submissions?
The Chairman: You mean for any additional time?

Mr. Stewart: Yes.
The Chairman: Did you receive an answer?
The Clerk of the Committee: No.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): You did not receive an answer?
The Clerk of the Committee: No.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Was Mr. Pigeon asked to come?

Mr. Dorion: Yes, and he was not interested.
The Chairman: I want to make a correction on the date. It was certainly
prior to the eighteenth. It was sent out—
Mr. Badanai: With the first batch of wires we sent.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : You said he had written to you, Mr. Dorion.
Mr. Dorion: Yes, and I have a letter I can show you.
The Chairman: It was sent out on Friday, which would be—what is the
date of last Friday?
Mr. Stewart: Seventeenth.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): July 15.
Mr. Badanai: July 15.
The Chairman: That is the correct date. We asked for an answer by

Monday noon, and we felt if they did not get it Friday or Saturday, they would
at least have it by Monday morning, and have time to have a wire in our hands
by Monday noon.
Gentlemen, the only comment I have to make is that it obviously would
be unfair to the Minister of Justice for the committee to ask him to go over
this bill, as we intend to go over it, clause by clause, and have him present
his views, if the committee is going to keep open, for what appears to be an
indefinite period of time, its hearings, in the expectation that one or more might
wish to appear. And certainly, the steerling committee, in its recommendation
does not, absolutely preclude the committee from changing its mind. But
certainly there ought to be a very good reason for the committee accepting
representations from anybody other than Mr. Mundell, after proceeding with
the minister’s testimony. So I think we have to decide whether we are going
to adjourn now, or whether we proceed.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I understand, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Fulton
made a general statement this morning. I know what he said; I have had an
opportunity of considering it. I want to ask him some questions on his basic
statement. I am sure that others do too.
The Chairman: I would say, Mr. Martin, that there certainly will be no
restriction on the asking of question when we come to dealing with the clauses,
or, as far as that is concerned, on any general matter, if you wish to—as long
as it is relevant to the bill.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Mr. Fulton made a statement this morning, and
a rather important statement, and I would like clarification of some of the
things that he said, that is all. Then, after that—
The Chairman: That is quite all right. As a matter of fact, he did not
quite conclude his general references.
Mr .''Martin (Essex East): Of course not. Well, he ought to be allowed to.
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The Chairman: I think I might indicate to you, Mr. Martin, that it was
just a general review, in a general way, of the points that have been raised
by some of those who have appeared before the committee, all of which will
come up again when we come to consider the clauses in the bill.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): No, a lot of them will not come up.
The Chairman: Would you be satisfied, then, if the matter were left open
to you now to ask any question you want?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes. I think Mr. Fulton ought to finish his
statement first.
Mr. Aiken: Mr. Chairman, before we do anything further, I think we
have not settled the question that was raised, and we must settle that. If we
are going to go on and struggle along this afternoon, and then come back
tomorrow morning and have the same subject raised, and do the same thing
Monday and Tuesday, we will never reasonably conclude our sessions, and the
minister will be brought back. I think we must decide now.
If we are going to call another witness, or give another witness this
opportunity, we should decide to do that and set a time. If we are not going
to call any more witnesses except the one tomorrow morning, we could per
haps go on on the same basis that we did this morning. But I do not think it
should wait in the air.
The Chairman: I think your point is well taken, Mr. Aiken, and inas
much as the committee has already adopted the resolution, I think the only
manner in which it can be dealt with, is by way of a motion to rescind the
motion by which this recommendation was adopted.
So I will now call for any motion to rescind the action of the committee
this morning.

Mr. Martin (Essex East): Mr. Chairman, I have stated my position, and
the record will be there. The members will have to judge accordingly.
Mr. Badanai: I suggest that we carry on, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Thank you.
Mr. Aiken: Can we settle this question?
The Chairman: That is as far as we can go. I am willing to entertain a
motion to rescind the decision of the committee this morning, and no such
motion is forthcoming, so I presume it is at an end.
Mr. Minister, would you care to continue, please.
Mr. Fulton: Yes. Mr. Chairman, this morning I had made some general
comments on some of the points that had been raised by witnesses appearing
before the committee and I had pretty well concluded what I had to say, with
the exception of one point that you raised, and asked me to comment on—and
that was the question of a preamble.
With respect to a preamble, we have made considerable efforts in the
department to draft a satisfactory preamble. We were not very satisfied with
anything which we had produced. I do not think I need to go in detail into the
problem of drafting a preamble to a bill of this nature. It is a question, really,
of what you put in.and what you leave out. I suppose that, just as what is in the
bill here does not appear to be satisfactory to everybody, and there are those
who have differing views to the effect that we have left some things out, so, I
think, would the same thing be true of a preamble.
I admit at once that a bill of rights of this sort is not the same thing as
an ordinary statute, and that therefore perhaps not all the arguments with
regard to drafting apply to a bill of this sort. I would not attempt to argue
too strongly that way.
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Subject to that general reservation, I think I should say that the present
drafting practice, not just since 1957, but a good many years before that in
Canada at any rate, and I think universally has been to get away from pre
ambles and to have a statute speak for itself without any preamble in it. We
therefore felt, in the light of this drafting practice, the tradition which is
growing, and in the light of the difficulty of framing a satisfactory preamble,
that this bill would be satisfactory without a preamble. We were reinforced
in that view in large part in that this bill is expressed to be in declaratory
form. If you look at clause 2 you will realize this is the basic declaration
of human rights and fundamental freedoms that exist in Canada. It does
seem to us, therefore, that with that declaration in it much of the purpose
which would be served by a preamble—which those who are interested in
having a preamble would like to see served—is in fact made. A good deal of
what ought to go into a preamble in a particular bill of this sort is in any
event in clause 2. One additional reason is we did want to produce a document
in short compass which is nevertheless complete, which being complete is
still short enough or almost short enough to lend itself readily to reprinting
and framing or mounting in such a way that it could be posted up on the walls
of schools, assembly halls, courtrooms if you wish, and in similar locations all
across the country. This perhaps is not a major point, but it is a point to be
taken into account. We had in mind the question of keeping it within a short
compass for that purpose. The adoption of a preamble was simply one other
factor which would make that more difficult to accomplish.
For those reasons we decided we would not present a bill with a pre
amble in it. A good deal has been said, however, here about a preamble.
I do not want to take an arbitrary position and say we are absolutely right
and anybody else is absolutely wrong. However, although indications were
given that we would appreciate the advice and assistance of others in sub
mitting a draft preamble, I think I am correct in saying that only Professor
Cohen, at least amongst those who appeared before the committee, gave us
a concrete suggestion.
The Chairman: You arc quite correct—of those who appeared before the
committee.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): So far.
The Chairman: Mr. Gordon has a preamble.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I hope to propose one in this committee at some
stage.
The Chairman: I was going to suggest that the hon. member might find
himself possessive of that fluency and embellishment that might be desirable
in so far as a preamble to this bill is concerned.
Mr. Fulton: All I can say on that point is that the government and I
personally as minister are still prepared to take under consideration any
preamble, perhaps not a particular one, but any one that might be submitted,
to see whether, in that form or in some modified form, and also considering
points which may arise out of other preambles suggested, we might be able
to find a preamble which is satisfactory, which does not destroy the desire
for brievity, and does not run counter to the other considerations that I put
forward. That is, those which, up to this moment at any rate, had influenced
our decision against the inclusion of a preamble.
We would be very glad to receive and to hear the suggestions, and study
them to see if we can produce a preamble that is in keeping with the bill.
That concludes all that I had thought it appropriate to say by way of
general remarks, Mr. Chairman. I understand that it is the desire of the com
mittee to go through the bill clause by clause. I understood this morning that
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the intention was that at that stage I would be questioned either with particular
reference to the clause itself, or with reference to any part of my statement
that I have made, which is relevant to the clause under consideration.
It was again my understanding of your decision this morning that the
clauses should not be carried formally but rather that questions should be
exhausted in respect of a clause, and then we would move on to the next clause,
out of courtesy to Mr. Mundell who it was decided would appear as a witness
before the committee tomorrow. I think the feeling was that it would not have
been courteous to carry the bill and still have another witness come before
the committee.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I think that is the only procedure we can follow
because of amendments that any of us wish to propose. We have some that we
are considering, but we are not ready to put them as yet. We want to hear the
minister, and we want to hear Mr. Mundell. I take it at some stage we will
either carry the bill as it is, or with whatever modifications are agreed upon.
Mr. Fulton: The general practice is that the minister is present at the
time when the bill is considered clause by clause, and has the opportunity to
comment on amendments.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Certainly.
Mr. Fulton: I would have thought that the amendments could be put for
ward this afternoon in that same way so that I might have had the opportunity

this afternoon of commenting on them.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): As far as I am concerned I am in that position
now because I want to hear you. We may be wrong in some of these things.
In any event, we are not quite ready in that regard. I did not think we were
going to finish so quickly. It is a very difficult matter, as you know. However,
the procedure you have outlined, as far as I am concerned, is all right.
Mr. Fulton: That would mean then, would it not, that I would come back
at the time when the bill is finally being put to the committee?
The Chairman: Exactly.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes. It would not take very long.
The Chairman: Mr. Martin says he is not prepared to submit amendments
that he has in mind this afternoon. I think that the committee should have the
minister back before this committee whenever those amendments are presented.
I think I should draw to your attention some difficulty that might be
involved in that respect, and that is that the combines bill has been reported
out of the banking and commerce committee, and I would anticipate that it
would be before the House of Commons on Monday. I would expect the minister,
who will be sponsoring that bill, will be required to be present in the House
of Commons at all times during that debate.
Mr. Aiken: I think Mr. Martin would like to be there too.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I think the minister, in fairness to this com
mittee should be here when amendments arc discussed. I would want to accord
to the minister the treatment, which I believe every member of this committee
feels should be accorded to him in respect of a matter of this importance. I
certainly would not proceed with an amendment unless the Minister of Justice
was here.
We all have heavy obligations. If we are in this mess, it is not the little
groupers sitting at this end of the table who are responsible for it.
The Chairman: I think what the committee should do then is, in view of
the fact that those amendments will not be available today, have the minister
come back before the committee on Monday morning.

HUMAN RIGHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS

427

Mr. Martin (Essex East): There might not be any,amendments, I do not
know.
The Chairman: If we do not conclude on Monday morning we will continue
on the mornings after that until we have completed our consideration of the bill.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Always bearing in mind what the Prime Minister
said, that our primary obligation may be in the House of Commons at a given
moment.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): I understand we are hearing Mr.
Mundell tomorrow morning?
The Chairman: Yes, tomorrow morning.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): Could we not continue on, after
Mr. Mundell has been heard?
The Chairman: The minister will not be here.
Mr. Fulton: I will be in Washington on the Columbia river negotiations
tomorrow and Sunday.
The Chairman: Even the minister will be working on Sunday, in any event.
Mr. Fulton: Unless we reach agreement on Saturday.
The Chairman: May I suggest, Mr. Martin, that you may wish to question
Mr. Fulton generally, before we proceed to the clauses?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): As far as I am concerned, the procedure he
suggested is acceptable, if'he wishes to take it clause by clause; and then I will
endeavour to relate whatever I have in mind to that clause. It may be that
some matters are not identifiable in that way. I think Mr. Deschatelets has
some questions, too.
The Chairman: I think that would expedite it. Then I will call clause 2
of the bill.
Mr. Deschatelets: Can we start with the title?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Wc had better «have clause 1 first.
Mr. Aiken: That is the preamble.
Mr. Deschatelets: Could we start with the title?
The Chairman: The title is usually dealt with last.
Mr. Fulton: That is all right, if you want to start with it.
Mr. Deschatelets: Then, on the title, I think everybody will agree the
rights and freedoms enumerated in clause 2 only apply witltin the federal
jurisdiction. This is a fact that is being admitted, I think. I do not see anything
in this bill or title or anywhere suggesting that. I think this was a cause for
some uncertainties, described by certain briefs, that we are suggesting that we
are touching here some rights, property and civil rights, which belong in certain
aspects of the legislature.
I was wondering if we should add to the title something which would
clearly indicate that we are dealing here with matters concerning federal
jurisdiction.
Mr. Dorion: Mr. Chairman, before having your answer, on this particular
point I have suggested that because there is uncertainty for certain of our
members of the bar about the significance or meaning of “in Canada,”—you
have the article of Mr. Pigeon, and I received from Mr. Pigeon a letter after
long discussions with him on it. I received a letter; and it was his main objection
to the bill that “in Canada” would not be sufficiently clear.
I suggested that after “in Canada” it would be possible, maybe, to add
some words—
The Chairman: Excuse me, Mr. Dorion, but you are dealing with clause 2,
and I understand Mr. Deschatelets was dealing with the title.
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Mr. Dorion: But it is an answer to the question raised by Mr. Deschatelets.
Mr. Stewart: It is the same point.
Mr. Dorion: If we had something like this after the words “in Canada,”
“in so far as within federal jurisdiction,” I believe, because the evidence
brought before us indicated that certain civil rights keep appearing, even
in any act of parliament, because in certain aspects it is within the federal
jurisdiction to deal with such a problem. The most clear example of it is,
surely, the Criminal Code, which affects the liberty and certain civil rights
of the subject. In consequence, if we add these words, “in so far as within
federal jurisdiction,” I would agree that it would be so in order to clarify the
text and to answer the objections raised about this matter.
Mr. Fulton: Perhaps I could deal with those two points of Mr. Descha
telets’ and Mr. Dorion together.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I have quite a series of questions on this very
point. I do not know if you want to deal with them now.
The Chairman: Do you feel that your questions could be conveniently
dealt with at this time?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I was going to deal with that point when I
came to clause 2; and I have another point on the preamble, and still another
point on clause 1.
The Chairman: You may put your questions now if it is agreeable to the
minister.
Mr. Fulton: It is perfectly agreeable to me. I do not mind when they come.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): With regard to the title or preamble, has the
minister given consideration to the valuable point made by Mr. Dorion and Mr.
Deschatelets, that it could be dealt with in the preamble? Because there is, I
suggest, a grave doubt as to the meaning of clause 2 in so far as sections 91
and 92 are concerned; and in the preamble it would be possible to use phrases
which could clearly indicate that this bill in its actual terms is as parliament
intended, namely, only to deal with those matters which are within federal
competence.
Mr. Fulton: It is true that that could be stated in the preamble, or it
could be stated in clause 1, or even in clause 2. But it seems to me to do that
is, firstly, not necessary; and secondly, it might be establishing an undesirable
precedent. It is, as I understand it, a principle of legislation that every statute
enacted by the parliament of Canada deals only with those matters which are
within the legislative jurisdiction of the parliament of Canada. Therefore you
do not need to state that in the bill. To adopt the practice of stating it in the
legislation would, I think, be unsound, because it would create, certainly by
inference, the suggestion that some of our other legislation which was not
stated to be so restricted but was intended to have effect outside the jurisdic
tion of the parliament of Canada.
The parliament of Canada only has jurisdiction to legislate over those
matters which are assigned to it under the relevant sections of the British
North America Act; and it seems to me that it is unnecessary, and I would
say undesirable to include in our statutes a provision which can only have
the effect of saying that we are not trying to contradict the law or distort the
constitution.
That, surely, is a fundamental principle which is not only a legal prin
ciple, but also a principle in the construction of statutes themselves.
Mr. Dorion: Mr. Minister, I understand well your point of view, but may
I
recall that we have had many or some federal laws which were not within
the federal jurisdiction. The result was that we had to have recourse to the

HUMAN RIGHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS

429

courts in order to decide it; and the best example I can think of is surely
that rule of law which was enacted in 1934.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes, the Unemployment Insurance Act.
Mr. Dorion: Yes, and I suppose when the legislators at that moment
enacted this law, they intended that it should be within federal jurisdiction;
but it was tested after, and it was the cause of litigation.
I think it would be fairer if it were of a nature to avoid any litigation.
Mr. Fulton: Mr. Dorion—

Mr. Dorion: Excuse me.
Mr. Fulton: But, Mr. Dorion, it is, I understand, a principle established
byMr. Dorion: Just a word to finish, Mr. Minister.
Mr. Fulton: I am sorry, proceed.
Mr. Dorion: I may remind you that actually we have, in Quebec, before
the courts, a case where the question of liberty of religion is being discussed
precisely on the point as to whether or not it is within the provincial jurisdic
tion. Although I do not know, I presume that the judgment will decide it because,
in the Supreme Court, in another case, there are some judges who made it clear
that it was within the federal jurisdiction. However, it was not a precise decision
and, I suppose a decision eventually will come which will be contrary to our bill.
My own view is that in certain respects, freedom of religion is within
the federal jurisdiction. But, in the police regulations, for example, they have
a revision—but only in our province—and there are some very interesting
cases on this particular point. I believe, also, there is a provincial aspect in the
matter of using a street to hold a religious service meeting.
Mr. Fulton: I think I must come back to the point that if the statute, in
fact, trenches upon provincial jurisdiction, the addition of these words would
not, in itself, make that provision valid; it is the situation as interpreted by
the courts, which sets the limits of federal and provincial jurisdiction. As
I understand it, Parliament cannot simply by declaring something to be within
federal jurisdiction, give itself the right to legislate—or, by saying: this statute
is confined to federal jurisdiction, and we offer provisions which, in fact, go
beyond federal jurisdiction. Therefore, as I understand it, the addition of the
words suggested would not change the situation. If, in fact, our bill trenches
on things reserved exclusively to the provinces, the courts will decide whether
or not it is valid and, in making that decision, they will not have reference
to whether or not we have put in a phrase “this affects Canadians only within
the jurisdiction of the parliament of Canada”.
Mr. Dorion: But, at least, it would indicate a good intention.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): This is one of the very points, I have your
words of this morning. I feel that the point which Mr. Dorion has raised—
the first one he raised today—is on sound ground, and his suggested reserva
tions were applied to the words “Canada” and “property”, and the suggested
words, which he used “within the competence of the federal government”
would satisfy me.
I was just suggesting, for the minister’s further consideration, that the
preamble might be the way in which to do that, in order to keep the language
of section 2 as simple as possible. But, on the point in issue, as I understood,
the minister said this morning—and correct me if these words are incorrect;
they were taken down by an associate of mine:
The bill of rights does not encroach upon provincial rights, be
cause any such encroachment would be a legal impossibility. The bill
of rights is enacted by the parliament of Canada and, if valid, cannot
encroach.
23572-1—3
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Then:
If the possibility of encroachment exists, that would be prevented by
judicial interpretation.

Mr. Martin (Essex East): But, surely, we must avoid, to the fullest ex
tent, going to the courts, and also we must avoid the sensibilities of the prov
inces in this matter. Now, it seems to me, that unless you can argue that
section 3 of this bill provides the limited interpretation to the words “Canada”
and “property” I would not agree with that construction. I do not think a
judicial interpretation would permit that.
Then the words “Canada” and “property”, not being defined, will be
regarded by the courts ultimately as something that is ultra vires the federal
parliament. Why should we run the risk, where there is doubt? Here you have
Mr. Louis Philippe Pigeon, who is an eminent jurist and teacher of law, who
wrote the article in the Canadian Bar Review, who expresses himself pretty
strongly on this point. You have the view expressed by Mr. Dorion, who is an
eminent lawyer, and others. It just seems to me, why run the risk of running
into this situation, raising the whole constitutional problem that exists in
Canada?
The minister further stated that the Canadian bill will have an effect
with regard to property and civil rights in so far as the federal aspects of
these subjects are concerned. I have no doubt that is what the minister intends.
There is no doubt that is what we all intend. That is what parliament intended—
the Prime Minister said this is only to apply. But that is not what the clause
says.
Mr. Fulton: Whether we intended to go beyond that or not, it is a funda
mental rule of construction that parliament can only legislate concerning, and
the statute can only be interpreted as covering those matters in relation to
which parliament has jurisdiction to legislate.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I quite agree with that. Of course, that is going
to be the only effect on the courts. But I say at once that I am sure that the
argument of Mr. Pigeon and the argument of Mr. Dorion is sound.
Supposing, in the case Mr. Dorion mentioned a moment ago, the case of
religious freedom—I am not familiar with that case.
Mr. Dorion: It is on the question of an amendment brought to chapter 307
of the provincial statute, which is the reproduction—the reference of the
statute of 1852.
Mr. Fulton: Yes. Is that not the Freedom of Worship Act?
Mr. Martin (Essea: East): Supposing that case began de novo, and sup
posing there was a new case entirely, and this bill was passed. People would
rely on this, and people taking one position would argue, “Oh, no, this is a
matter which the legislature in Quebec cannot legislate on; this is a matter
that comes under the bill of rights passed by the parliament of Canada. The act
says that we shall have freedom of religion in Canada”.
That would be the argument. True, as the minister said, the courts would
have to declare whether or not this was ultra vires; but all we are arguing
now is that, since there is some doubt, let us avoid that. And this was mentioned
by the Canadian bar.

Mr. Fulton: It seems to me that we are overlooking another fact too, and
that is that what will actually come before the courts, as I see it, is some action
in which it is complained that there is interference with the freedom of religion,
which deprives somebody of his right to freedom of religion.
The courts will then have to look at that action and see whether the statute
or any other authority under which that action is taken is within the competence
of the authority which passed the statute to enact.
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So that the mere fact that we have a Canadian bill of rights declaring that
there is freedom of religion in Canada, does not in any way take away the
authority given to a province, which it now has under the constitution—
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Agreed.
Mr. Fulton: —to legislate with regard to the circumstances under which,
and the places at which churches may be built—things of that sort. If they
have the authority to legislate in relation to that subject matter, now, that
authority is not abridged by the declaration in the bill of rights.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Agreed.
Mr. Fulton: And it will not be made any clearer, or any safer, by our
putting into the statute the words, in clause 2, “within the jurisdiction of the
parliament of Canada”, because of the fundamental rule of construction that
I have referred to. Indeed, even if we did have some special words in here I
doubt very much if we would have removed the conflict of opinion as to
whether what was done in the Boucher case was within federal or provincial
jurisdiction. I think I would be in a very peculiar position as Minister of
Justice, and I think any Minister of Justice would be in a most peculiar position,
if any statute started out by saying “here, we are not trying to subvert the
constitution; that is ipso facto—we cannot legislate except in fields where we
have the authority to legislate”.
Mr. Dorion: If we follow your own reasoning it would be possible to change
article III and tell in respect of all the acts of Canada enacted before or after
that we thought of having these words, and that it would be a good thing.
I believe that we have to create a good atmosphere in order to avoid any fear.
I know that in Quebec there is fear about this bill. Perhaps it is not a reasonable
fear, but there is a fear. That is a sound reason why I believe it is very impor
tant to have something in order to determine that it is not the intention of the
legislators to act outside of the federal jurisdiction. That is probably the main
reason why I make that suggestion. I believe that with the bill of rights
it is very important to create a good atmosphere in every part of Canada. This
is probably the main reason why we have to put something in the bill in order
to determine it is not the intention of the legislators to go outside of our
jurisdiction.
Mr. Deschatelets: Moreover, I do not think it is a good thing that we
create a false impression. We were told this bill of rights will be given much
publicity^will be posted in schools and so forth everywhere in the country.
Anybody who would read that would think at first sight that with this bill
there would be no more racial discrimination in Canada. Well, this is not true.
There could be racial discrimination after the adoption of this bill without any
hope of redress by this bill if it happened outside the federal jurisdiction
between two private parties. So I think it creates a false impression. I do not
think it is a good thing, especially with a bill of rights.
Mr. Dorion: I am not jealous of my own suggestion. I have no objection

to something like that at all.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I had some more questions on this very point.
I had dropped away from one in order to give others a chance. I think the
minister wishes to comment on Mr. Dorion and Mr. Deschatelet’s questions.
Mr. Fulton: I do not think I can do much more than repeat what I said
previously, that the mere insertion of a declaration or a provision that the
legislation is confined within the federal jurisdiction does not alter the effect
of the law. If there be valid grounds for the fears expressed, that this does
go beyond the federal jurisdiction, then would we not be creating a false
impression to say, by mere phrasing, that we are trying to keep it within
federal jurisdiction. I think we are better with a law which is based upon
23572-1—34
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and really within the fundamental principle of legal application that parliament
cannot arrogate to itself the right to legislate beyond its jurisdiction, whatever
form or words it may use.
Mr. Deschatelets: Of course, in doing that, we do not add anything, but
we would limit the application of this bill. In doing so, we do not get anything
out of this bill. The powers of this bill are limited; the freedoms and the rights,
and the applications are limited. I do not see any reason why we should not
state that.
Mr. Fulton: I wonder if this might be the way of meeting the point: Mr.
Martin has suggested that we consider putting some expression of limits in
a preamble so as to make it clear what our intention was. I think you would
agree with me, Mr. Martin, that a preamble does not have valid legal effect.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : No.
Mr. Fulton: I admit if it will give reassurance as to our intention, it might
well be useful to consider putting some such expression of intention in a
preamble, but I think, in honesty, I would have to make it clear that I am not
pretending that by putting it in the preamble it would do more than make a
declaration of intention, any more than, putting it in the bill would give it legal
effect if, in fact, the bill went beyond federal jurisdiction.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am not sure that is wrong, but I think the
rules of the Interpretation Act allow a court to look at a preamble to determine
the meaning of a section.
Some Hon. Members: If it is ambiguous.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes.
Mr. Dorion: We have a good example of that in the Westminster statute
for succession.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I will be frank with you. A number of us have
tried to create a preamble and it is a very difficult thing to do. There is no
doubt about that. If it was ready you would have it before you now. It is not.
It is partially in being, and it seeks to meet this point. We can submit it for
your consideration, and that is all we can do.
What disturbs me about this point that we have been discussing, and I
think it is a very important point which Mr. Dorion and Mr. Deschatelets have
expressed, is because I am sure there will be more uncertainty about this
clause unless we clear this point up. I did not appreciate until I was told this
morning what the minister said, when he said that clause 2, which is a declara
tion, will have the effect of law. I understood you to say that. You said this
will have the effect of law?
Mr. Dorion: Surely, as in the interpretation of other federal laws.
Mr. Fulton: It certainly has the effect of declaring law, yes. I would not
quarrel with you that it has legislative effect.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Yes. I did not fully appreciate that that was the
effect of it because of some of the preliminary words dealing with what is,
or is not, an historical fact. The words “there have always existed—”, and
so on I thought were purely declaratory, and it was intended to be nothing
else. Now, if this has the effect of law, and I presume the law officers of the
crown are of that view, then we do declare in a federal statute, in the face
of this discussion in respect of the word “Canada”, to use the minister’s own
expression which he used this morning, has geographical application as well as
legal meaning. We do, clearly with regard to that word, create—surely without
doubt—the ambiguity that is in the mind of those who are concerned about
this. Likewise with the word “property”. The minister said on that point this
morning that the word “property”, was, of course, only that property which
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comes within the competence of the federal government. That is not what
the clause says. The clause just says “property”.
Mr. Fulton: But we cannot legislate with respect to property and civil
rights within provincial jurisdiction.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Of course not.
Mr. Fulton: And therefore we would not be taken as doing so.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Take the question of interpretation with respect
of what is now the national park. Mr. Dorion would know a good deal about
this, and Mr. Deschatelets, too, because are Quebec lawyers.
The crown—and I am not blaming this government, because it was done
under the former government and, I suppose, it continues under the present
government—took over certain lands as part of the national park across the
river. At the time there was some protest made by the head of the government
of Quebec, on the ground that this was an invasion of the rights of the
province under the property and civil rights clause of section 92. We do
know—I think in two of the expropriation cases—the tenor of the judge’s
observations with regard to that. But suppose these cases were up for con
sideration now, or others arise in the future, an individual will argue in law,
on the basis of this statute, that the bill of rights gives the federal government
the right to take property that is domiciled within the province.
Mr. Fulton: I do not think the individual’s argument would be listened
to very long by the courts because, as I have said before, the bill of rights,
especially in its present form, cannot affect the fundamental division of
authority between the parliament of Canada and the legislatures of the
provinces. That is the particular reason why I do not think the argument would
stand up, and I do not think it would be raised seriously that the bill of rights
gives any federal government rights which it did not otherwise have to go
in and expropriate property.
The question of the authority of the federal government to expropriate
property would be settled by the courts by applying the law they have always
applied under the Expropriation Act, by determining whether there was any
federal authority to enact such a statute, which particular authority the
federal government would be relying on when it went in to expropriate
property.
After all, to elaborate a little bit on that point, it is suggested that the bill
of rights, by clause 2, creates uncertainty. Well, I have tried to meet that by
saying I think everyone will understand the parliament of Canada not being
able, by its own unilateral action, to alter the division of constitutional
authority. This statute cannot enlarge the field of our jurisdiction. I do not see
how the bill can be alleged to create uncertainty in that way.
There is uncertainty, or has been certainly a good deal of uncertainty as
to the B.N.A. Act itself; an almost infinite number of cases have been brought
before the courts to clarify the limits of the jurisdiction which the B.N.A. Act
was supposed to set. But it is the B.N.A. Act that sets them, and the bill of
rights does not purport to alter them. I am unable to see how it can be sug
gested that the bill of rights, therefore, creates uncertainty.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I appreciate your point, and with everything
you said, I agreed with that, that the courts would give their interpretation.
But we have to think in terms of situations that might arise, where there are
opposite opinions and a lawyer, or someone else, seeking to assert a right
would, in my judgment, in view of the generality of the language in this
statute, conclude that this bill gave him rights which he thought, or would
argue, were being guaranteed by the federal parliament, notwithstanding the
limitations in section 92.
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It seems to me when we are dealing with legislation at the beginning, and
when we are confronted with a situation that has been exposed as this is
being now exposed, it is our duty, as legislators, and, I say with great respect
to you, as Minister of Justice, it is our duty and yours to see to it that there
is no possible ambiguity, if we can avoid it.
Mr. Dorion mentioned a few moments ago the so-called legislation of 1933,
1934 and 1935—acts that were proposed with regard to unemployment in
surance; and then there were two others, I forget what they were, which were
submitted later, by the succeeding government, to the Supreme Court of
Canada. They were found to be ultra vires, and it was pointed out—and I am
not raising that argument for the purpose of reviving that discussion, but
just to further complete the point that Mr. Dorion mentioned and to argue it
logically—it was pointed out in parliament that it was obvious that for a
federal statute to impose contributions on an employee or on an employer
was contrary to the British North America Act.
The reply was given: well, the courts will decide that. It was clearly
contrary at the time to the property and civil rights section, and it is true
that the province gave the constitutional power to the dominion government
when that kind of legislation was enacted. That is the kind of situation which
confronts us now; and some argue that the word property, in the same form,
is open to the interpretation that we give. You have eminent people who argue
that, and it seems to me that that point ought to be met, and that there would
be no difficulty in an addition in this section in the kind of words that Mr.
Dorion has mentioned, or a rephrasing of them in the preamble which would
clearly establish that as far as we are concerned, we want to remove the
ambiguity.
I think this was in the minds of the Canadian bar association when Mr.
Mclnnes appeared before us. And he said on page 4:
To sum up, there is uncertainty whether parliament or the legisla
tures of the provinces may deal directly with human rights and
fundamental freedoms.
Then he said:
It has even been suggested that the imposition of serious restrictions
would be beyond the power of parliament as well.
Now, this was in the mind of a section of the Canadian bar association,
and it is in our minds, and we will do—or at least I will do no more, as far
as I am personally concerned, than to point out what I think is a real point.
I was impressed with it the first time, when looking at the section, and
I was confirmed in my impression after I read Mr. Pigeon’s article.
Mr. Fulton: I do not think what you have said alters whatever force
there may be in what you said earlier.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is right.
Mr. Fulton: You referred to the words I used this morning with regard
to the effect of the words “in Canada”, and what I said then perhaps I might
repeat in connection with this particular context. I said that the declaration
in clause 2 referred to the words “in Canada” and would be effective throughout
the whole area geographical and legal over which the parliament of Canada
has jurisdiction.
This language relates to the heads of Section 91 and it extends over the
whole geographical area, and over the whole field in relation to the subject
matter. I was careful to point out that there again it has an effect geographically
and legally in Canada, and it has had an effect with respect to the heads which
are within the jurisdiction of the parliament of Canada itself.
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I have indicated that in my view the bill of rights creates no uncertainty,
and I base that view on the legal principles that I have referred to. But I have
said that in so far as one may argue, and in so far perhaps as I may recognize
that there are those who suggest that it created uncertainty—whether I agree
with their reasoning or not—that we would be prepared to take a look at a
suggested preamble which you are going to put in; and if we can in that way,
by appropriate wording in the preamble, display our intention concerning the
laws which you and I have been discussing, then it should remove any un
certainty, and we will not be stubborn and say that we will not do it.
I would conclude this part by saying that you should bear in mind that
with respect to clause 2 especially there is one difference; we declare that
it is as clear and precise and effective as possible, and that is one place where
we would want to do that in order to avoid being criticized elsewhere, that is,
a cleaning up of the language of unnecessary legal phrases.
Here we felt there was no necessity of putting in such a phrase, and
we felt it would read better without it. Now, if we could resolve the un
certainty, and take care of the point in the peamble, I would sooner do it that
way than do what I believe would be unnecessary to do in this clause.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): You can argue it more than that, but you are
going to consider it. I have some other points on this section.
I understood, this morning—
The Chairman : Is your question on the same point?
Mr. Stewart: It is not on the question of the geography part of it. I
was wondering if, by setting out the two rights and four freedoms in clause
2 we are not, in effect, restricting the declaration to those freedoms, and
there may be others not covered.
Mr. Fulton: I think clause 5 in part II, on page 3 of the bill, takes
care of any danger there may be there. Do you wish me to read clause 5?
Mr. Stewart: No; that is the saving clause.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.

Mr. Stewart: I think it might be better to go in there, and put it in
this way:
It is hereby recognized and declared that in Canada there have
existed and shall continue to exist certain human rights and fundamental
freedoms and, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the
following human rights—
and so on.
Mr. Fulton: But, would you accept from me that that might be to insert
legalism, and we were trying to avoid it. We recognize it should be in the
bill but, to avoid the danger, we thought it would be better to keep it out
of here, and that is why we put a separate clause in 2.
Mr. Dorion: The word “namely” would indicate it is only an enumeration.

Mr. Stewart: “Existed and shall continue to exist”—and then you name
them specifically.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, and I recognize that the normal way of ensuring the
courts shall not interpret an enumeration as being exclusive is to say “not
restricting the generality of the foregoing”, or words to that effect. Normally,
you would put it in there but, in order to avoid introducing that particular
legalism at this particular point, we inserted it, rather, in clause 5. I feel
the inclusion of clause 5 counters the danger you have in mind, and it is
more in keeping with the object we have in mind—to get a simple, clear and
effective declaration of rights in this clause.
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Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Yes.
I was going to deal with the first paragraph of clause 2, but I notice that
you leave out the word “always”.
I understood that the minister said this morning:
The use of the expression “have always existed” was appropriate
because it would be sheer presumption in a statute to create, as it
were, rights and freedoms which parliament has been historically
obligated to protect.
That was one of the reasons.
Do I understand now you have agreed to take out the word “always”?
Mr. Fulton: Yes. What I was saying, when I used those words, was
to try and outline the reasoning, on the basis of which we included these
words, indicating these rights have existed previously in Canada. I recognize
there is an opinion that holds that we have gone too far by the inclusion of
the word “always”, and there is a decided opinion—at least from some—as
to what we should do about it. There are those who hold it does not go too
far; there are those who hold it should be taken out and nothing substituted—
and, that is the word “always”; and there are those who hold it should be
taken out and some other expression, or words, substituted such as the words
“heretofore” or “hitherto”.
I have said, as far as I am concerned, a good argument could be made
that “always” does not go too far, but this is one of those cases again where
I think one must not be arbitrary and seek to impose what may be a personal
opinion on others. I have said that we would appreciate the expression of
opinion of this committee as to whether the word “always” should come out.
If so, whether nothing should be substituted or whether some other word
should be substituted therefor.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I agree that it should come out. We all take the
view, I hope, that these rights have always existed in Canada; but as there is
argument, of some persuasion, that that has not always been the case, it seems
to me the more accurate thing to do.
I do not want to argue the point, because you have accepted it; but it seems
to me that this is rather doubtful, if this can be construed, if left in, as a
reflection on the present and past parliaments. That was a criticism which I
understand you made this morning, and one of the reasons why you thought
it should be included.
Mr. Fulton: Not quite, Mr. Martin. My point this morning was that I
doubt if anyone says these rights are only going to come into existence when
this bill passes. These rights have existed heretofore and, therefore, it seems to
me to be presumptuous of a government to suggest to parliament at this time
that we, by this bill, are creating particular rights which it has always been
one of the duties of parliament to protect.
That would seem to be the presumption on the part of the government, and
parliament, if it accepted the government’s point of view. I said that it was on
the basis of that sort of reasoning that the word “always” was included.
Quite frankly, in my view, when I looked at it I felt these words:
It is hereby recognized and declared that in Canada there have
always existed—
and so on, would be interpreted as meaning in Canada, in the legal sense in
which that name is used, and I thought that would apply to the British North
America Act of 1867, or the point of time when the British North America Act
of 1867 was enacted, which said that four provinces “shall form and be one
dominion under the name of Canada”. That was the way in which I had thought
these words would be interpreted. That is what we had in mind when we used
them.
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Certainly, I do not think anyone would argue that these human rights and
fundamental freedoms have always existed since 1867 in Canada; but there are
those who say that “Canada” has a connotation going back behind 1867, and I
would not argue with that; I would not take an arbitrary position on it. That
is why I say that we are open to suggestion with regard to the elimination, and
substitution of some other word for “always”.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is fine; but I would not think it would be
a sound argument to take the position that parliament now could not, by a
statutory declaration, say that previous acts were undesirable, on the part of
previous parliaments.
Mr. Fulton: It could—and it could repeal them, indeed.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Legally, yes. But I understood you had said that
to say they had existed at all times would be to suggest that parliament in the
past had been derelict.
Mr. Fulton; No.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Then I misunderstood you. With regard to the
four freedoms that have been mentioned, I think that your comment is right,
that we would be restricting them if we were to accept this suggestion. But it
seems to me that now that you say this clause 2 is going to have legal effect,
we ought to examine carefully what we are saying here. We say:
It is hereby recognized and declared that in Canada there have
always existed—
etcetera, etcetera;
freedom of religion;
freedom of speech;
freedom of assembly and association; and
freedom of the press.
I certainly agree that we want to have freedom of religion, and these other
freedoms, in our country. But the way they are stated there is in absolute form.
The law that this clause is now enacting is freedom of religion, freedom of
speech and, particularly, freedom of the press, which it is said now exists in
Canada. You have absolute freedoms.
Now, that is not the fact. Freedom of the press does not exist in Canada.
Freedom of the press—under the Switzman case, and the Alberta case—has
been established to be inherent in our parliamentary system and to be outside
the competence of provincial governments. There is some doubt as to whether
or not parliament itself can abridge that freedom. But freedom of the press is
qualified under the law as it exists today—in acts of sedition; in acts of defama
tion of character. And, that being the case, we do not carry out here those
qualifications that are now existing in the law. What we are saying is that
freedom of the press exists.
Mr. Fulton: Mr. Martin, I think that probably you are pressing a point
to an illogical conclusion. Freedom does not mean licence, and it never has
meant licence; and certainly it would not be so interpreted here. Freedom is
freedom under the law, and what is happening here now is that parliament is
declaring those freedoms and is also laying down rules of construction and
interpretation so that these freedoms may not be abridged beyond the point
which parliament itself has authorized in the subsequent clause. But to argue as
you are that by inference freedom means licence, to my mind is to miss the
point entirely.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am not arguing that freedom means licence.
I am simply saying, having in mind what we are doing now is enacting a law—

we are not merely making a declaration; we are saying what is the law—that we
are stating something which is not the law.
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Mr. Fulton : Do you say there is not freedom of the press?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I say it has qualifications.
Mr. Fulton: Because it is not licence. Freedom does not mean something

which is absolutely untrammeled.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I can merely say that this is not an accurate
expression of the section. If we said it is hereby recognized and declared that
in Canada there has always existed and shall exist freedom of the press subject
to the existing law, that would be an accurate statement. That qualification may
not be acceptable language, but it would be a statement of the law as we intend
it to be; but that is not what we are saying. What will arise if the freedom of
the press is refused is that litigants will say "Oh, but look at the bill of rights.
You cannot restrict us from saying in the press what we have said because this
section says there is freedom of the press”.
Mr. Fulton: Freedom does not mean licence. It is well understood to mean
freedom under the law.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I just make the point. I think you have given it
consideration. I point out that Mr. Bora Laskin—is he coming here?
The Chairman: No.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): He argues this point pretty thoroughly and I
thought rather impressively. There is another point in these proceedings. I
presume that when you say these freedoms exist, the legal bases, apart from
this bill, are mainly the decisions of our courts, and particularly in the last
decade, the Supreme Court of Canada.
Mr. Fulton: I do not quite go along with that. These freedoms are inherent.
We are declaring them now and giving them a legal basis. I would say the
decisions of the courts are rather guide posts and interpretations of the extent of
those freedoms and in some areas indicates whether they lie within the federal
or the provincial jurisdiction. I do not think the judgments of the courts created
them.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : No. They have confirmed their existence.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : But Mr. Dorion mentioned a case with which I
am not familiar, which is now current in Quebec, where part of the argument
surrounds the question of freedom of religion.
Mr. Dorion: That exactly. That question was raised in the Saumur case
in the Supreme Court. It was in connection with the municipal bylaws. The
last case to which I alluded is in connection with an amendment brought by the
legislature to chapter 307. This amendment was in order to determine that if
there is a licence in the activity of any group it would be possible to have an
injunction. The initiative in this case came from the Jehovah Witnesses. They
asked that it be decided that this amendment and the chapter amended are
without provincial jurisdiction.
The Chairman: Outside of it.

Mr. Dorion: Yes, outside of it.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I think this is of course desirable, to want to see
freedom of religion in this country—absolute freedom. But the minister has
perhaps met my point when he says that the basis for this is not basically
the Supreme Court, because those decisions—the Jehovah Witnesses case is a
good example—establish freedom of religion within the context of the particular
facts that are before the court.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
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Mr. Martin (Essex East): I do not think they go beyond that. You have
said that what you are doing now is, you are dealing with the whole field com
prehensively and you are saying, by this bill, there is freedom of religion. I am
not in the position, nor would I want to be in the position, to argue that anyone
can successfully contest that.
Mr. Fulton: One other reason that I think could be argued in favour of
making a legislative declaration, Mr. Martin, is that some of the judges, in any
event, in respect of that series of cases in the Supreme Court, have felt impelled
to rest their reasoning and their conclusions in part on the preamble to the
British North America Act which says that Canada shall have a constitution
similar to that of the United Kingdom. As Professor Cohen said, this is because
of our legal technique. Our judges would reach out for something, and they
are happier when they can find some written statement of law on which to rest
their conclusions rather than having to reach them from a priori reasoning.
I think this is something which legislators have to take into account, and I think
it would be a great help to the Supreme Court of Canada if they could find a
statute of the parliament of Canada upon which they could rely rather than
having to go to a preamble, which is of limited, at any rate, if not doubtful,
legislative effect.
The Chairman: Mr. Stewart, would you like to interject at this point?
Mr. Stewart: I would like to have a comment from the minister on the
suggested change to clause 2 (b). This might not improve it, but I would sug
gest this: “the right of the individual to equality under the law, and the right
not to be discriminated against because of national origin, colour, religion,
or sex”.
Mr. Fulton: I just want to get those words down.
The Chairman: Would you repeat that, Mr. Stewart?
Mr. Stewart: “the right of the individual to equality under the law, and
the right not to be discriminated against”.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): You are suggesting that instead of the word
“protection”.
Mr. Fulton: Mr. Stewart, I think the answer was given in part in discus
sions I had with Professor Cohen yesterday. I am referring particularly to the
last part of your suggestion; the right not to be discriminated against by
reason of race, colour, religion, or sex. You will remember, we say we are
enacting law here, and I am wondering whether that does not create more
difficulties than the declaration in the present form. I gave the example of the
man who advertised that he wanted to enlist persons to be part of a chorus in
a stage show. If you said that everyone has the right not be discriminated
against on the grounds of sex, you may be making it impossible for this man
to say “only women need apply”, because a man might say: “I am being dis
criminated against on grounds of sex”. There were a couple of other illustra
tions which I gave.
The other point, and perhaps a more serious one, is that here is an area
most certainly where most of the laws covering the point you have in mind
are expressed under the heads of section 92. It would seem to me that to state
it in that form, you are then certainly in danger of what has been discussed here
earlier; namely, going beyond the limits of federal jurisdiction. You are cer
tainly pointing pretty directly towards something which is under provincial
jurisdiction. That is why we felt the present form of words is preferable, and
they were adequate because of the scheme of this legislation.
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Clause 2 (a) declares the rights of a person in a definitive sense; the right
of the individual to life, liberty, security of the person and enjoyment of
property, and the right not to be deprived thereof except by due process of law.
Here you have outlined an area of the great fundamental rights.
Now, I think we have mostly agreed, at any rate, that the ultimate pro
tector of the rights of the individual, under our constitutional system, is the
courts. So, having established those rights to apply to all individuals in
Canada, we think we have given them adequate protection, not only when
we say that he has those rights, but also under 2(b):
the right of the individual to protection of the law without dis
crimination by reason of race, national origin, colour, religion or sex.
We think that under that section, without any danger of infringing upon
provincial jurisdiction, we have adequately defined the rights of the individual
and have given him the means by which he may protect them.
Mr. Aiken: Mr. Chairman, to refer back to the point raised by Mr. Martin,
on the same objection to the words “have always existed” in the second line,
I wonder if it would suit the purpose if we eliminated those three words and
substitute “should have existed”?
Mr. Fulton: That would certainly be an almost direct statement they
had not existed prior to this time; and I think that would be going too far in
the other direction.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I think the suggestion that “always” be deleted
is the way to do it.
The Chairman: I think Mr. Aiken originally suggested “hitherto,” and
I wonder if he has retracted from that position?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What about this point with regard to clause
2(b)? I raised in the house this question with the Minister of Public Works:
a negro in my city, Mr. Spencer’s city—
The Chairman: Do not forget I have a share of that city, quite a large
share!
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : —was denied the right to a loan under the
Central Mortgage and Housing Act. His case was taken up, I think, by the
U.A.W. There was considerable correspondence with the minister, who pointed
out this was a matter that came under the property and civil rights clause of
section 92, and while he sympathized with the point of view of the representa
tions, the only remedy that he could see was one that lay with the provincial
authority.
I raised the matter in the house, and it was suggested we would give
further consideration to that. At that time he said that he would look into
it and he would refer it to the Department of Justice. Later he told us that
he had arrived at some formula, in consultation with Justice, whereby the
federal government, as the guarantor of at least 75 per cent of the moneys
loaned, would make it impossible for that kind of discrimination to exist.
Perhaps this is not the place to pursue it, I do not know; but are you
familiar with that situation?
Mr. Fulton: Not in detail, Mr. Martin, and I would want to consult with
my colleague before giving you a final and definitive answer. But I can
certainly go so far as you have gone, and I can confirm that what you have
said is the situation—namely, that my colleague has become concerned with
the situation to which you refer and that his department and my department
have been working together to produce a formula by which such a situation
could not occur in the future with respect to contracts to which the Central
Mortgage and Housing Corporation is a party, or in which it has an interest.
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Mr. Martin (Essex East): The discrimination was on the basis of colour.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I should have added this, that he did say that
after the bill of rights had passed he would introduce or announce the formula
that he hoped it would be possible to work out. I suggested, as we were deal
ing with this matter in principle, at any rate, the formula he had in mind
might be referred to this particular committee for consideration. However,
it may be our terms of reference do not permit me actually to look into the
matter, and I think that would satisfy me for the moment.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, and my understanding is that we have found a formula
which is acceptable to public works, and C.M.H.C., and which we believe will
produce the result of preventing such discrimination in the future in that field.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I have one more question on this clause, and
that is concerning the words “due process” in line 10. The words “due pro
cess” are not as current in use in our courts and in our legal discussions as they
are in the United States. The interpretation of the phrase “due process” in the
United States arises out of a particular section in the constitution of that coun
try, and the line of judicial decision as to what “due process” implies is, of
course, as we all know, very great. But in Canada this is not a phrase which is
in current use. Are we not, by the use of this phrase, going to create a situ
ation in our country which will be somewhat comparable to the situation which
began in the United States when this particular phrase was first used in the
constitution and create a whole series of definitions and refinements to fit
particular circumstances?
I have a further observation to make that it is not clear what we mean by
“due process” in this context. Is it “due process” according to natural justice,
or is it “due process” according to law?
If it is the latter, would it not be much better just simply to say “shall not
be deprived thereof except by law”?
Mr. Fulton: This question was raised in Professor Cohen’s statement yes
terday, and he pointed out something which I think you will be interested in,
and it was, that “due process”—and I took his words down—“due process” as
a phrase has a respectable lineage. And he traced it back as far as Coke, in
the seventeenth century, and he admitted that it has not been a phrase of wide
application and use in the common law tradition or the Anglo-Saxon constitu
tional tradition." But it has been a phrase which I^as existed in our law for all
that time.
So it was our view that in trying to interpret this phrase our courts would
refer to the American jurisprudence which has been built up around that
phrase.
I am not for a moment suggesting that they would follow them as a prec
edent, but rather that they would refer to them as guides or illustrations, if
you like, of the way in which these words should be interpreted and applied.
I have a note here on the basis of the study we made of the phrase when
we decided to incorporate it to the effect that:
In applying the due process clause to substantitive rights, the courts
in the United States have interpreted the provision to mean that the
government is without the right to deprive a person of life, liberty, or
property by an act that has no reasonable relation to any proper govern
mental purpose, or which is so far beyond the necessity of the case as
to be an arbitrary exercise of governmental power. The due process
clause is intended to protect against arbitrariness.
“Due process” is intended to protect against arbitrariness; and while it is
quite true that the current or more recent trend of American jurisprudence is
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following a line somewhat different from the earlier trend of their cases under
the “due process” clause, as I have said, it is our view that the courts would
look at the American experience as illustrative of the ways in which this
phrase might be applied, that they would look at the whole of that experience,
and would not necessarily tend to follow only the earlier part of that expe
rience, but would apply the whole thing in a manner in which to them it seemed
most apt to apply it in Canada.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I suggest that you give consideration to the
suggestion, if we do agree on a preamble and decide to incorporate it in this
bill, because we want to make this bill as appealable in form as possible.

Mr. Fulton: As what?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): As appealable as possible.
Mr. Fulton: As appealing, you mean.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes, as appealing as possible.
Mr. Fulton: I think “appealable” would mean that we would have cases
and they would be appealed from court to court.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Section 1 ought to be at the end of the act.
Mr. Fulton: At the end of part I or the whole act?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): The end of the whole act.
Mr. Fulton: Well, I pointed out to you we did that in order that it be
comes clear it is part I that is a bill of rights. That is the part we wanted to
be able to frame, or hang up on the wall.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Or, part II.
Mr. Fulton: It is a more technical part and a more transitional clause,
and affecting the War Measures Act. We did not want it as part of the bill of
rights, and that is why we said part I might—
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Well, I will have something to say on that
later on.
I had some other observations, not on sections, but on some of the points
you made this morning. However, you want to go on to the sections, and then
come back to the generalities later.

Mr. Fulton: As you wish.
The Chairman: Does that conclude clause 2? If so, may we now proceed U
clause 3.
Mr. Rapp: In connection with clause 3, Mr. Chairman, I was going to ask
a question of Mr. Cohen yesterday, but we did not have enough time. I would
like to have some clarification on subsection (a) of clause 3:
Authorize or effect the arbitrary detention, imprisonment or exile
of any person.
Would the word “exile” mean those people who have no citizenship, or
naturalized Canadians? How would that apply in relation to the War Measures
Act, and how would it apply in relation to our existing Immigration Act?
Mr. Fulton: Well, to answer the first part of your question first, during
a period within which the War Measures Act was in effect under a declaration
that had not been revoked by parliament itself in the method provided in
clause 6 of the bill, the powers given under the War Measures Act would be
open for the use by the governor in council—by the government. But, as I
say, the important thing to bear in mind here is that while we believe that
a government must have emergency powers in wartime, we have made it
clear that no government can resort to emergency powers as contained in
the War Measures Act by an unjustified implementation of the War Measures
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Act, and parliament itself has the right to review whether, under the circum
stances, the government should have declared the War Measures Act in force.
So, there is that protection given against the improper invocation of emergency
powers by the government.
Now, with regard to the Immigration Act, I do not know that I can answer
your question in quite the general form in which you asked it. I know it is
dangerous to particularize on hypothetical cases, but if you could give me an
example as to exactly what sort of a situation you have in mind, I will endeavor
to answer it for you.
Mr. Rapp: Well, under the present Immigration Act, as it was amended,
say last year, a person—a naturalized citizen, or a person who had not obtained
his naturalization papers here, he can be exiled under certain regulations, or
in certain cases.
Mr. Fulton: Forgive me for being technical, Mr. Rapp; but what you
describe is deportation, not exile, because under the Immigration Act there is
no power in the government to order the deportation from Canada of a person
who is a naturalized or natural born Canadian citizen—no power whatsoever.
If I recall it correctly, the Immigration Act authorizes only the exclusion
or the removal from Canada of persons who have not acquired rights either as
landed immigrants or as Canadian citizens. And they are entitled to a hearing—
so that, there, any order made against them would only be after a hearing,
and they would only be deported in accordance with the law.
Mr. Rapp: Under the War Measures Act, that would apply much more so?
Mr. Fulton: Well, the powers of the government under the War Mea
sures Act, are—
Mr. Rapp: Extensive?
Mr. Fulton: —are extensive. And, indeed, we have had witnesses here
who have told us, in no uncertain terms, that in their view they are much
too extensive; and the Prime Minister has declared it to be the intention of
the government to have a review made of the War Measures Act at the appro
priate time.
Mr. Rapp: What protection will this bill give, or what more protection
will this bill give than there was before—in the enacting of this bill?
Mr. Fulton: With respect to what type of person?
Mr. Rapp: To naturalized citizens that would be deported. Would this
give them more protection?
Mr. Fulton: As I have said, there is no right to deport a naturalized per
son, except under such powers as may be contained in the War Measures Act,
and what protection those persons will have if this bill becomes law—with
respect to the protection they have, in regard to the War Measures Act, is that
parliament, for the first time, is given the right to review the declaration under
which the powers of the War Measures Act were brought, or effected. If Par
liament feels that the government is trying to create an imaginary emergency
for the sake of getting these emergency powers, it can, by the procedure pro
vided in clause 6 of the bill—can set aside the proclamation by which the
War Measures Act was invoked, and then those emergency powers cease.
Mr. Rapp: I had in mind the Japanese case, in 1947 or 1946.
Mr. Fulton: I think that I have to answer that by saying that that Japa
nese deportation order was made under the War Measures Act. They would
have a greater measure of protection now, in that parliament could, as I say,
review the declaration under which the War Measures Act was brought into
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effect. I would point out that in addition subsection 4 of clause 6 gives par
liament the right at any time to revoke the proclamation, so that if parlia
ment considers that a government was exercising its powers under the War
Measures Act long after the emergency of war had passed it could revoke
the proclamation and the War Measures Act would cease to be in force and
effect.
Mr. Rapp: Thank you.
Mr. Browne ( Vancouver-Kingsway): How could this be brought up in the
first instance? It says if the proclamation is made it must be brought before
parliament within ten days to determine whether the proclamation was
proper or not.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway) : Assuming that parliament then felt
the need had passed, how would it be raised in parliament again? What pro
vision is made to raise the matter again?
The Chairman: I do not think that is covered by subsection 4.
Mr. Fulton: I would rather wait until we get to clause 6 and study this
in somewhat greater detail to check my answer to you on that point.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am told the minister said this morning that
there was no doubt that section 3 would have a retroactive effect and that
that was one of the reasons why you decided not to have an amendment to
the B.N.A. Act, because that would present some difficulties. On the question
of the retroactivity and the other side of the coin, if I may put it that way—
the question as to whether or not this bill renders inoperative any existing
inconsistent legislation—I suggest to the minister that the language of the
section is so general that it cannot be deemed to have that effect, notwith
standing what is said in the operative part of the section. Now, in support
of that, I point out to the minister something he well knows; that is, that the
existing charters—the Habeas Corpus Act, the Act of Settlement, the Bill of
Rights, the Magna Carta and so on—are part of our fundamental law and
it is not very frequently that one finds decisions of the courts which are based
upon direct reference to these charters. I suggest one of the reasons, as Mr.
Laskin points out, is that these charters are in such general language that
when the court is confronted with a particular set of circumstances on which
it must make a judgment it invariably looks at the section of the act. I suggest
in litigation that will ensue—and we are told by the vice president of the
Canadian bar association that that body looks upon this as being capable of
promoting much litigation—that the courts will not regard inconsistent acts,
with the generality of this language, as inoperative or no longer in being.
Mr. Fulton: Of course, Mr. Martin, I speak with deference to the learned
vice president of the Canadian bar association, but I think there is a difference
between the effect of this bill of rights in its application to statutes past or
future and the application of the great charters of the past to which you have
referred. I think that difference arises in this way; the charters are all ancient
constitutional documents. It is a principle of legislation and of the supremacy
of parliament—it is also a principle of interpretation—that in looking at a
statute the courts will look at the last enactment of parliament, and if there
are inconsistencies between statutes the general principle is that it is the last
enactment that speaks, because parliament does have the right to alter its
previous enactments. Therefore, parliament is presumed, where there are
inconsistencies, to have intended to alter the older statute. Therefore, supposing
there was a statute in force which gives to an administrator operating under
it—an officer acting under the authority of the statute—some arbitrary power
which appears to be inconsistent with one of the old historic documents. Of

HUMAN RIGHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS

445

course, quite properly so, it must have been the intention of parliament to set
aside the protection of the old historic document because here is an express
statute, or a statute expressly authorizing the kind of action which has taken
place.
Our bill of rights says explicitly that all previous statutes of the parliament
of Canada, and all regulations and orders made thereunder, shall be interpreted
in accordance with the bill of rights. Therefore, our bill of rights is expressly
made applicable to those statutes. Therefore, with respect to past statutes the
court is instructed to interpret them in accordance with the bill of rights,
whereas, if the court had only to rely upon great historic documents which
preceded in time by a very many hundreds of years, any statute of the parlia
ment of Canada, the statute of the parliament of Canada in question would be
the latest one, and the courts would properly hold that to override the Magna
Carta, or any old historical documents.
Similarly with respect to federal statutes, we have made a provision in the
bill of rights which we believe will carry forward the effect of this bill as a
rule of construction and interpretation to be applied by the courts even in
dealing with statutes passed after this bill of rights; because, we have provided
that, unless a subsequent statute expressly set aside the bill of rights, the bill of
rights will apply as a rule and a direction to the courts as to how to apply
and interpret the subsequent statute. I think that those words speak for them
selves, and I believe that the effect of them is as I have outlined them.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): You said this morning, without mentioning par

ticular statutes, that a good number of them would become casualties.
Mr. Fulton: I said we anticipated that we may have a number of casualties.
In the words I used, I said there would be some risk, some problems and
perhaps some casualties.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Have you had the opportunity, through your
officials, of listing the statutes that will be amended to remove any doubt, or
did you feel that there could be no doubt that this will override any existing
statute, as you say, and that consequently you need not be concerned about
going through the process of repealing them?
Mr. Fulton: We have, as I said this morning, made a general survey of
the statute law of Canada, and we feel that, generally speaking, the bill of
rights will override any statute now on the books in the respects covered by
the bill of rights. I would not care to say there will never be any question of
doubt, and that there will never be a case where the courts will give this
bill of rights the full effect that we say might be given to it. Indeed, as
Professor Cohen pointed out yesterday, judges could apply the bill of rights,
and may be inclined—some judges may be inclined—to say: well, we have
to take some account of administrative convenience; and some judges may tend
not to give the bill of rights the wide application which it might otherwise
have. If we find that to be the case, and on examination, feel that this is a
case where the bill of rights should apply, then it will be for parliament to
decide whether or not to amend the statute under which the action complained
of has been taken, and has been upheld by the courts. Generally speaking we
think the bill of rights will prevail. Where cases of doubt, or uncertain
ty arise on the part of the courts in applying the statute and in applying
. the bill of rights, or where indeed the courts take a contrary view to that
which I have expressed, then we may have to deal, by legislation, with the
particular case and particular statute in question.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : To be specific, if I could address myself to
paragraphs (e) and (/):
(e) deprive a person of the right to a fair hearing in accordance
with the principles of fundamental justice for the determination of his
rights and obligations; or
23572-1—t
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(f) deprive a person of the right to a fair and public hearing by
an independent and impartial tribunal for the determination of any
criminal charge against him.
The bar association addressed itself to this problem at page 10, when
Mr. Mclnnes asked:
What is the difference between the requirements of sections 3 (e)
and 3 (/), “a fair hearing in accordance with the principles of fund
amental justice” and “a fair and public hearing by an independent and
impartial tribunal”?
Mr. Fulton: Well, Mr. Martin, paragraph (e) deals with the determina
tion of his rights and obligations generally, whereas paragraph (/) deals with
the determination of matters in a specific field, namely criminal charges. So
there is that difference between the two paragraphs. I think that answers
your question.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Yes, I think it is an answer, and I want to give
consideration to it.
On the other point we were talking about a moment ago, that I was seeking
to do but I diverted myself—as to whether or not this bill overrides incon
sistent legislation, Mr. Mclnnes said:
Is section 3 (f) intended to modify provisions of the Criminal Code
and the Juvenile Delinquents Act which provide for hearings in camera,
provisions which hitherto have been afforded primarily as a protection
to the accused?
Mr. Dorion : On this point, Mr. Chairman, I would like to make an
observation—
Mr. Fulton: In answer to that specific question, Mr. Martin, the Criminal
Code and the Juvenile Delinquents Act, strictly interpreted, do not deprive a
person of the right to fair and public hearing. They provide that the court
may, in places where it deems it appropriate, have a hearing in camera.
I think it might be argued, as a result of this clause, if the accused insisted
on a public hearing, if he himself wanted a public hearing and insisted
upon it, then the court might have to grant it to him.
The Chairman: Is that your point, Mr. Dorion?
Mr. Dorion: Yes, that is the essence of the observation I wanted to make.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): You think that covers it?

Mr. Dorion: Yes, because it is a right of a person and not an obligation
on the court.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Take all these sections in the Immigration Act.
I cannot name them by sections, but there are some of them that certainly
would not be in keeping with these clauses. Once this bill is passed, will an
individual be able to resort to these particular sections and argue, with
success, that the department must give him a hearing?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, it must give him a hearing.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): In accordance with these and not in accord
ance with the Immigration Act?
Mr. Fulton: You would have to demonstrate some inconsistency between
the provisions of the Immigration Act and the bill of rights. There may be
some, and if there are, you might have to look at the Immigration Act, if a
case arose.
But paragraph (/)—which says:
(/) deprive a person of the right to a fair and public hearing
by an independent and impartial tribunal for the determination of any
criminal charge against him.
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—relates only to criminal charges.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes.
Mr. Fulton: Paragraph (e) says:
(e) deprive a person of the right to a fair hearing in accordance
with the principles of fundamental justice for the determination of his
rights and obligations.
The Immigration Act allows for a hearing, and certainly we think the hearing
should be fair and should be in accordance with the principles of fundamental
justice.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What would happen in a case like this: an
individual feels a particular right has been violated by a decision of a depart
ment of government. The decision of the department of government is com
municated in a letter. There has been no face-to-face consultation between
the departmental official and the individual, and the individual gets a letter
and he says, “I want to have a hearing on this.” He argues his rights have
been violated.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I have a case right now where that has been

denied. Will this individual, under this bill, be entitled—I do not mean to
a hearing in court, but will he be able to go to someone and say that he
wants to see this official and argue out his point of view?
Mr. Fulton: I would have to know first what the right was that he
alleged he had been deprived of; secondly, under what statute or authority
the departmental official purported to act, before I could give you an answer.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : This was a case of an assessment of a man’s
income tax; he was a farmer, and he was denied the opportunity.
Mr. Fulton: I would certainly have to have the facts of the case before
I could give a satisfactory answer to your question.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): It was an individual—and I will show you
the correspondence—this individual was a farmer, and he had been given
an assessment.
Mr. Fulton: The Income Tax Act, so far as I am aware, provides for
individuals to protest against their assessment, and there are procedures by
which they can appeal; they can appeal from the decision of the department.
I do not know if the statute itself could be said to deprive any person of a
right to a hearing. However, I would have to know the facts of the case
before I could give you a more definite answer. I know there are allegations
of abuses of a statute, but I would have to see, to answer your question, as
to whether the statute actually authorizes the course taken.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Let us suppose that a man has been apprized
by the immigration department that he must be deported. It is true that he
has proceedings available to him in court, but he may not want to go to the
courts. He may just want to go to the official and ascertain why he is being
denied.
Mr. Fulton: My understanding of the Immigration Act is that an order
to deport can only issue after a hearing; it can only be made after a hearing,
and that the hearing must be conducted in accordance with the principles of
fundamental justice, according to clause (e) in the bill of rights.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That was just a hypothetical case I was pro
jecting in my own mind.
Mr. Fulton: It does not give the right to have an unlimited number of
hearings, but he must have had a hearing in accordance with the principles
of fundamental justice.
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Mr. Martin (Essex East): Does that apply to any person, be he a citizen
or not?
Mr. Fulton: An order to deport a man cannot be issued against a citizen.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Paragraphs (e) and (/) apply to any person?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, to any person, that is right.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Let us suppose that a person is here as a
visitor for six months and he feels he has good reason why that period should
be extended. Would he be given, under this section, an opportunity to have
a fair hearing? I do not mean a tribunal hearing.
Mr. Fulton: No person, under the construction we would apply, would
be deprived of any right under subclauses (e) and (/).
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What would be your answer to the question
which Mr. Mclnnes posed on page 10 of his brief, in the last sentence of the
last complete paragraph:
Will decisions of the Minister of National Revenue on taxation mat
ters now be open to question by the courts before appeal to the tax
appeal board?
Mr. Fulton: It is my impression where decisions of the minister are made
which would have the effect of depriving a person of some of his alleged
rights, for example, in connection with income tax, then I suppose that para
graphs (e) and (/) would apply. But it is also a fact that the Income Tax
Act itself provides for appeals by taxpayers from assessments; and that is
generally the way it is done.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : You admit that there are possibly some sections
in the Immigration Act and possibly other cases which are inconsistent, and
that at some point they would have to be reconciled. But I would point out to
you that Mr. Mclnnes, in the middle of his page 11 said:
The other interpretation is that a general declaration such as this
will not affect existing provisions that are directly contradictory. . .
Mr. Fulton: What is the page?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): It is page 11, just before the middle of the page.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Where Mr. Mclnnes points out as follows:
The other interpretation is that a general declaration such as this will
not affect existing provisions that are directly contradictory, for had
parliament intended to repeal the contradictory provisions it would have
done so explicitly.
Mr. Fulton: And, he goes on to say:
If the latter interpretation prevails, the bill of rights will not sub
stantially modify existing law.
I do not think I can quarrel with his statement, but with the modification
that he put in in the last sentence which I have just read.
It is our view that a court really would not find much difficulty in holding
that the bill of rights has explicitly repealed the contradictory provision, because
it says:
All the acts of the parliament of Canada enacted before or after the
commencement of this part, all orders, rules and regulations thereunder,
and all laws in force in Canada or in any part of Canada at the com
mencement of this part that are subject to be repealed, abolished or
altered by the parliament of Canada, shall, unless it is otherwise expressly
stated in any act of the parliament of Canada hereafter enacted, be so
construed and applied as not to abrogate, abridge or infringe—
and so on.
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I do not know how you could have words more specifically applying the
bill of rights to the previous statutes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): He goes on, and I quote:
It would be a courageous judge who would rule the Lord Day’s Act
inoperative in a prosecution against a non-Christian member of our
community who raised the bill of rights in his defence.
Mr. Fulton: Well, I am afraid I do not know exactly what he has in mind,
and he does not elaborate.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Well, the part of section 2 where we speak of
freedom of religion will have a very definite implication in so far as the
bill of rights is concerned.
Mr. Fulton: Well, of course, that would be a question where you have to
see how the courts interpreted the activity with which the individual was
charged, or rather, the activity giving rise to the charge under the Lord’s Day
Act, and the courts would have to decide whether what he was doing was really
in the exercise of his freedom of religion or not.
,
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Well, those are illustrations of the kind of
concern that exists. Of course, I have some trouble in being satisfied that the
generality of this bill does negative operatively any existing inconsistent act.
Mr. Fulton: Well, what I have said before, and have said now, might be
taken subject to the qualification I have expressed. If and where it is held by
the courts it does not so negative the operation of an existing act, we will have
to deal with that case on the basis of the situation thus disclosed.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What we are doing is transferring to the courts
a responsibility which I think belongs to parliament.
Mr. Fulton: Well, I think a logical inference to be drawn from your
argument is that parliament should not seek to make the bill of rights applicable
to statutes previously enacted. We hold a contrary view.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I would say the bill of rights must apply to
existing statutes, but must be worded so as to remove any doubt.
For instance, take paragraph (b):
—shall be construed or applied so as to
(b) impose or authorize the imposition of torture, or cruel, inhuman or
degrading treatment or punishment.
Now, there will be a strong argument made by a lot of lawyers and people
who think that means we, by this act, are removing capital punishment.
Mr. Dorion: Or, whipping.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Or whipping. I would say the words “cruel,
inhuman or degrading”—“inhuman and cruel”, and, for some, “degrading”,
would be construed in that way and, indeed, that is the submission of the
Canadian bar association.
Mr. Fulton : All I can say to you is that if the courts should hold that
hanging is “cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment” then we
will have to deal with that situation. However, it is our opinion the courts would
not so hold, provided the punishment was inflicted in the proper manner. I am
not talking about abuse or carelessness in the manner of carrying it out. But if
we were wrong, and the courts held that the bill of rights had the effect of
abolition, which I think is beyond the realm of possibility, then we would have
to deal with that situation.
Mr. Dorion: If there was not the word “punishment” there, it would be
quite different.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What was that—I did not understand it?
Mr. Dorion: If there was not the word “punishment”, it would be different,
because I believe that punishment has, surely, a legal meaning.
23572-1—5
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Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Dorion: But with that word I believe it is dangerous, in that it is a
contradiction of certain articles of the Criminal Code. Do you not believe that
it would be sufficient to have all the phrase, but without the word “punishment”?
It would be applied, for example, to treatment given by a police agent.
Mr. Fulton: I do not know, Mr. Dorion. When you are making a bill not
only of retroactive but of prospective application, I think you should ensure
that no statute hereafter enacted shall authorize the imposition of cruel, in
human or degrading treatment or punishment. I think that should be in a bill
of rights.
You say there is a danger that the courts, in interpreting it and applying
it to the present provisions of the Criminal Code, which impose the sentence
of death by hanging for a convicted murder, may hold that that provision is a
provision imposing a cruel, inhuman or degrading punishment. I think that is
a remote possibility.
As I have said, if the courts should so hold, we would have to deal with the
situation thus created. But I think that the danger of such interpretation and
application by the courts with respect to those provisions of the Criminal Code
is so remote that we are justified in taking that risk in order to achieve the
greater advantage of writing into our bill of rights a prohibition against statures
being passed in the future that authorize cruel and inhuman punishment.
Mr. Dorion: I believe that the only authority who has that right to impose
punishment is a judge.
Mr. Fulton: But he can only impose it within the limits authorized by the
statute.
Mr. Dorion : He is obliged to impose it within the limits authorized by the
statute. For treatment, it is different. Suppose a person is arrested and is illtreated by the police: I understand that it would act against that provision.
But punishment is the privilege of a judge, and the right of a judge—and
that right is defined by the code.
Mr. Fulton: Yes—and it is the duty of the judge.
Mr. Dorion: Yes, and the duty. But punishment is not the duty of every
one, except of the judge. In consequence, I do not understand why “punish
ment" is there, when the punishment is defined and imposed in accordance
with the law.
Mr. Fulton: But we are dealing here with statutes that may be passed
in the future, as envisaged, and we want to prevent the passage of any statute
which authorizes the imposition of torture, cruel, inhuman or degrading
punishment.
It is the judge who is the agent, it is true—who applies and orders the
punishment which the law provides. But it is his duty. He does not authorize the
punishment; he merely imposes the punishment which the code itself requires
him, as a duty, to impose.
The Chairman: I was just wondering, Mr. Dorion, if you are not slightly
misapplying this clause. I rather gathered from you that you were thinking of
the imposition of torture or inhuman treatment by individuals.
Mr. Dorion : No—but individuals acting in their capacity as agents.
The Chairman: You mean, like a police officer?
Mr. Dorion: Yes, as agents of the federal government.
The Chairman: I do not think, Mr. Minister, that this clause has anything
to do with it, has it? I do not think it has anything to do with misconduct on
the part of a police officer, such as beating somebody up, or something of that
kind.
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Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Treatment or punishment.
The Chairman: But he is not acting under a statute.
Mr. Fulton: Then your remedy would be against the policeman himself,
because the policeman could not claim that any statute—at least, any statute
presently in force—authorized him to treat his prisoner brutally. Therefore,
this does not add to or take away anything from the present law in that
respect.
Mr. Dorion: In a certain measure, this is a declaratory statute?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, and it simply declares that no statute, past or future,
shall be so construed as to impose, or authorize the imposition of cruel or
inhuman treatment or punishment.
,x
The Chairman: It is a statute. Mr. Deschatelets, did you have a question?
Mr. Deschatelets: I was about to ask Mr. Fulton what is behind this
section 3(b). I did not understand it very well. What is the purpose or aim
of that?
Mr. Fulton: I do not think I could do better than to actually refer to
the words of the subsection. Its purpose is to prevent the passage of any statute
in future and to prevent the making of any regulation under any statute
which would have the effect of imposing or authorizing the imposition of
torture, or cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment.
Mr. Deschatelets: Would it add more strength or would it clarify the
wording if we said “to prevent the illegal imposition of torture,” and so on.
Mr. Fulton: I do not think so, because if you have a statute which says
it is illegal, or a statute which says the court may—I will exaggerate—order
a man to be flayed, it could be argued that it would be a legal punishment
because it was authorized by statute. If you rested your case only on the use
of the word “illegal” you would not be giving the prohibition we are trying
to give. We are trying to prevent the imposition of any of these kinds of
punishment. Therefore, we have tried to stop the passage of the statute. itself.
I do not think the word “illegal” is a sufficient safeguard.
Mr. Dorion: If we have to construe the statute in such a manner I believe
it would be the abolition of capital punishment.
Mr. Fulton: As I have said there are some who hold that view. I do not.

I will find this for you, but I believe similar words are in the English bill of
rights and they have continued with capital punishment and have it now.
Mr. Dorion: But do you believe that they have an equivalent of article III
of our draft bill of rights?
Mr. Fulton: I beg your pardon, Mr. Dorion?
Mr. Dorion: You referred to the English bill of rights.
Mr. Fulton: Yes. I have just sent for it.
Mr. Dorion: In order to determine if we can draw a conclusion in

examining that bill of rights, we have to know if there is something similar to
clause 3 of the present bill of rights, because clause 3 in the present bill of
rights means that all these rules—new rules—are caused to ,be applied to
every act.
Mr. Fulton: Yes. There is a rule of construction which the court is
directed to follow in interpreting statutes presently in force.
Mr. Dorion : In consequence, I believe the result is the abolition of capital
punishment.
Mr. Fulton: If somebody should present, say, a writ of prohibition against
the execution of a sentence of hanging and if the court before whom that is
23572-1—51
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heard should say that this is contrary to the bill of rights—that the bill of
rights overrides the Criminal Code—then you would have a debate on capital
punishment in a real sense because we would have to act to take care of that
situation. My view is that there is only a very remote possibility that a court
might so hold. Looking at the English bill of rights of 1689, and this is the
relevant provision—I am afraid I will have to read the introductory words:
An act declaring the rights and liberties of the subject, and settling
the succession of the crown.
Mr. Dorion: That was a preamble?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, I think that is a lengthy bill of particulars of complaints
against the sovereign.
Then it goes on as follows, after the preamble:
And thereupon the said Lords spiritual and temporal, and commons,
pursuant to their respective letters and elections, being now assembled
in a full and free representation of this nation, taking into their most
serious consideration the best means for attaining the ends aforesaid,
do in the first place (as their ancestors in like case have usually done)
for the vindicating and asserting their ancient rights and liberties,
declare:
It is interesting to note that this is a declaration.
Then we come to section 10, which says:
That excessive bail ought not to be required nor excessive fines
imposed ; nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : It says “unusual punishments inflicted”.
Mr. Fulton: Notwithstanding that provision in a solemn statute of the
United Kingdom, they continue capital punishment.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes, but it says, “unusual”.
Mr. Fulton: It says, “cruel and unusual”. I am quite certain that they

have amended the reenactment of their capital punishment provision since
1689.
I am not saying this necessarily disposes of the case, but I am saying there
is a strong argument, in support of my view, that the courts would not hold
our bill of rights does abrogate capital punishment. In England, notwithstanding
their bill of rights—the provision I have just read—they have continued capital
punishment.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I think the words in that bill of rights are not
as comprehensive as they are in this particular subsection. As I stated to you
at the outset, I concur with the possible interpretation that Mr. Dorion has
placed on his subsection, and that will be placed on it by a lot of individuals,
and I suggest, by a lot of judges, some of whom have expressed themselves in
respect of capital punishment itself.
Mr. Fulton: Excuse me, Mr. Martin. You have just made an observation
there. There may be a difference of opinion between us that we cannot recon
cile, but I do not know on what you base your observation, or your conclusion,
in the light of the precedent I have just cited from the English bill of rights,
because, it seems to me that our bill goes little, if any, beyond the words used
there with respect to punishment; and yet the English precedent establishes
that capital punishment is not contrary to the bill of rights.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I have two comments in that respect. First of

all, the English bill of rights, in the language which you have quoted, is not
as comprehensive as in this particular subclause (b), and that only points up
what I said in another context: that when the courts come to deal with par
ticular situations, I suggest that it will be found that they will not find the bill
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of rights in any way restricting them in the interpretation, in special circum
stances before them, in the light of specific statutes. I say that if your inter
pretation of what they will do in regard to (b) is right, they will take the same
course that they have hitherto taken.
Mr. Fulton: The only problem before them with respect to (b), will be the
problem of interpreting: is capital punishment a cruel, inhuman or degrading
punishment. That is the only problem they will have.
Mr. Deschatelets: If you will permit me to ask a question in this regard,
Mr. Chairman. There can be no problem in respect of capital punishment,
because1 once an accused is found guilty of murder, the penalty of death is
mandatory.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, that is true.
Mr. Deschatelets: There is no alternative.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, but Mr. Martin’s point is that if I am right in saying
that the bill of rights will override the provisions of existing statutes which
are contrary to the bill of rights, then the courts will hold that the section of
the Criminal Code authorizing capital punishment which are contrary to the
bill of rights, is repealed.
I do not agree with that, because the courts would have to interpret the
specific provisions of this subclause, because this subclause only has effect
with respect to statutes that impose or authorize the imposition of cruel, in
human or degrading treatment or punishment. The first exercise the courts
must go through is to ask themselves the question: is capital punishment a
cruel, inhuman or degrading punishment? If they find it has not those objec
tions, then the bill of rights has no application to that particular case. In
support of my argument the courts would not be likely so to find with respect
to capital punishment, I have cited you the English bill of rights which says:
That excessive bail would not be required nor excessive fines im
posed; nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.
Their words are:
—cruel and unusual punishments—
It is a fine argument and one we will not be able to resolve, and only the
courts can resolve, as to whether our words with respect to punishment
make capital punishment “inhuman or degrading.” Whereas the English inter
pretation has been that capital punishment is not “cruel and unusual.”
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I suggest to you, Mr. Fulton, you have put your
finger right on the difficulty by this particular section of the bill, the purpose
of which I fully appreciate, sympathize with and support. I think the lan
guage has got to be changed. We can delete certain words, I think, and main
tain the basic purpose. What we are doing in leaving the language in its present
form is to transfer to the courts a responsibility that belongs to parliament.
They are going to, by this section—as the bar point out, as Mr. Mclnnes
points out on page 12—create great latitude for judicial law-making, and
we are going to give the courts the responsibility of interpreting situations
that will have the effect of exercising the responsibility that belongs to the
legislature.
Mr. Fulton: But parliament will have the ultimate authority.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I know, ultimately, if the situation arises, you

say parliament can correct these things. In the meantime the Criminal Code is
in difficulty. There are certain punishments for certain kinds of crime, in
which the courts are given the responsibility, or the duty, as you say, of im
posing punishment pursuant to their findings in relation to the facts that are
presented. But the statute under which they operate the Criminal Code is
definitely precise. We are creating a whole series of adjectives here that give
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them a discretion which I think belongs primarily to the legislature. We ought
to frame this paragraph in such a way as to restrict their opportunity of
judicial law-making. It seems to me that is one of the functions of the legis
lature.
Mr. Fulton: Unless you take away from the courts the right and obliga
tion to interpret statutes, you must repose in the courts the function you are
describing. The only way you can prevent them from doing it is to change our
whole constitutional set-up under which, at the present time, the courts have
to interpret statutes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): If a man commits murder in this country, under
the law the judge must impose capital punishment. By this paragraph we are
giving the judge the opportunity of denying the expressed will, as of this mo
ment, of the legislature, which is that this must be the form of punishment.
That judge may say, “In the light of this section I consider capital punishment
is cruel, inhuman and degrading. True, the Criminal Code says that, but I
so find, in my conscience, and I will not impose that kind of punishment be
cause the bill of rights says I shall not.”
Mr. Fulton: If parliament intends, as I think parliament does, to prevent
the imposition of cruel, inhuman or degrading punishment, then that is the
will of parliament, is it not?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): That is right.

Mr. Fulton: Then, if the courts hold that capital punishment is cruel,
inhuman or degrading—if the courts hold that—are not the courts exercising
their proper function of interpreting the will of parliament; and if that is held
by the courts, does it not then follow that parliament should take a look
at the question of hanging and deal with that point when it arises?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Do you intend, by this section now, as Minis
ter of Justice, that the punishment known as capital punishment to be within
the discretion or imposition by a judge in the case of murder. Your answer of
course is no, that the law is there.
But you are faced with the situation where you admit that the judge may
arrive at the very interpretation which you deny under the existing law he
has the right to do.
Mr. Fulton: He does not; under the existing law he does not interpret
capital punishment, he merely imposes it.
The Chairman: If the will of parliament is that there shall be capital
punishment, and the court interprets it as being in violation of this section,
and we are still of that opinion, we may once again provide that capital punish
ment, notwithstanding the bill, shall continue.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : The Criminal Code says now that a judge must
impose capital punishment, and we cannot regard that as merely providing a
discretion, because the judge must take that position by virtue of that particular
section.
Mr. Fulton: I think it is a remote possibility. I think there is no likeli
hood that it may arise. I understand the reasons why you feel that way; but
if it is the view of the committee that it is desirable to place capital punish
ment beyond the bill of rights, we could possibly change our words to conform
with the English bill of rights and confine them to cruel or unusual. If you feel
strongly that you want to have capital punishment, you could, peradventure,
provide that it could be done.
'
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsioay) : My understanding of the English
bill is that it has the words “cruel and unusual”, and it seems to me that we
are going to curtail this here by saying “cruel”. That is the way I read the
clause now; it would mean cruel. But in the case of the English bill it would
have to be “cruel and unusual”.
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Was it the intention of the minister to go greatly beyond what we have
had before in this respect?
Mr. Fulton: Here is a case actually in which we have taken the words
from the universal declaration of human rights that no one shall be subject
to torture or to cruel, inhuman, or degrading treatment or punishment. We
felt that these were appropriate words to use, and we gave consideration to
the question of whether they would likely be so interpreted as to override the
provisions of the Criminal Code, which authorizes the imposition of capital
punishment.
We felt that they did not, and we based our belief in part on the fact
that similar words had been in the English bill since 1689. And if I go on, I
shall only be repeating myself.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway) : I do not think the American bill
of rights has words which are exactly similar. I do not think that in any of
i the bills of rights which I have read, there have been the words of this par
ticular clause; and it would seem to me to go considerably beyond anything I
have read in other bills of rights.
Mr. Dorion: Possibly there is—
Mr. Fulton: This has been subscribed to by Canada, and it was agreed
to by a joint committee of the Senate and House of Commons in the late
1940’s; so it has been subscribed to by Canada for all those years, and it has
not given any problem to our judges.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Oh yes, but there is a difference between that
declaration, and the particular imposition in a statute.
Mr. Fulton: Yes, I grant you that, but nobody has raised the point.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I appreciate where the language comes from,
but I think what Mr. Browne said has great validity.
Mr. Dorion: I see another danger; it is because you will have different
reactions or opinions from the judges. One may believe that there is no degrad
ing treatment or punishment in capital punishment, and another may have
another opinion. It is very dangerous to have different opinions from the judges
—from the bench.
Mr. Fulton: I quite agree; but I think—
Mr. Dorion: And it would be absolutely unjust not to have the same
standard for everyone.
Mr. Fulton: We would never stop at the lower courts ; we would go as
quickly as possible to the Supreme Court and get a final determination of the
case. Then, if the situation was as Mr. Martin thinks it might be, we would
have to deal with it, or invite parliament to deal with it. I think that is a
perfectly proper course to follow.
The only other way, it seems to me, you could meet the point—if there
be a point, and I question whether there is a point—would be to put in this
bill an express provision, “saving the capital punishment provision of the
Criminal Code.” But I do not think you want to clutter up your bill of rights
with a number of such provisions. If there is a strong feeling that there is a
danger of the course Mr. Martin predicts being followed, and this is essential,
that, it seems to me, is the only way you could do it. We think the proper
way to do it is to see whether the eventuality arises, get an adjudication by the
Supreme Court of Canada in the shortest possible time, and then if we are
faced with the situation where the courts have held the Criminal Code provision
is overridden by the bill of rights, we would have to ask parliament to deal
with it.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Mr. Chairman, I have two further points.
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The Chairman: Are they on the same point?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes, they are on the same point. I cannot con
ceive that the Canadian parliament or, for that matter, the Canadian legislature,
would impose any form of treatment that would warrant the adjective “degrad
ing”. However, one can never tell.
But I can conceive of situations where parliament, or the executive might
want to recommend to parliament, with regard to a particular crime, a form
of punishment in the future that would be very difficult to impose if we retain
all of this language.
We are now dealing with a situation, in so far as the law is concerned,
that exists. But if we want, at some future date, in the revision of the Criminal
Code to impose a form of punishment, we will find individuals in parliament
sincerely advocating that the particular form of punishment is one that is
contrary to the bill of rights, and we might find ourselves very seriously ham
strung as a result.
Mr. Fulton: Parliament, if it came to the conclusion that that form of
punishment recommended was a desirable one but, however, was prohibited
by the present wording of the bill of rights, would have to enact a statute
“notwithstanding the bill of rights”, authorizing that form of punishment. But
I cannot conceive of parliament, or the executive ever wanting parliament to
authorize the imposition of cruel, inhuman or degrading punishments.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): But parliament has done that, in the opinion
of many people. We have imposed capital punishment.
Mr. Fulton: But parliament will have to deal with that question, and the
majority in parliament will have to decide whether in fact it is a cruel,
inhuman or degrading punishment.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Then, Mr. Minister, my final thought is this.
We have pursued this pretty diligently, I think.
The Chairman: Might I just ask the minister this question, Mr. Martin?
The word that bothers me there a bit is the word “degrading”, because I sort
of have a feeling that any punishment that is imposed is, in a sense degrading
to the individual. I think all punishments are certainly not monetary; they
may be imposed physically by way of incarceration, or something of that kind.
Certainly I think it is degrading, in a sense, to ever be committed to jail,
and I am just wondering if we may not be using too broad a term in the use
of the word “degrading”.
Mr. Fulton: I would say that surely the courts, in interpretating the
words used, “cruel, inhuman or degrading”, will have to have regard to the
circumstances that a crime has been committed and that a person, given
all the benefits of the protections of our criminal code, has been convicted of
that crime.
In the light of the fact that this person has defied the rules of society to
the extent indicated by the crime of which he is guilty, they will then have to
decide whether the punishment inflicted is cruel, inhuman or degrading under
those circumstances. Certainly, it would be cruel, as well as degrading, to
deprive an innocent person of his liberty by incarcerating him, by putting
him in prison. But can you argue that it is cruel and degrading to deprive
a guilty person of his liberty by putting him in prison?
I might have something favourable to say with respect to our program
of penal reform, where the emphasis is on the rehabilitation and reform of the
prisoner. However, even apart from that, I think the courts would exercise
common sense in interpreting those words; as I say, in the light of circum
stances that a person has been convicted of a crime which is an offence against
society’s laws. I think that the ordinary term of imprisonment, provided your
jails arc not brutal places, could not be regarded as a degrading form of
punishment.
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With respect to the question as to whether we should alter these words,
Mr. Chairman, I am in some difficulty. Supposing I were to accept the argu
ment of Mr. Martin and others, and were to say that we should modify these
words. What we would be doing is enacting a bill of rights in Canada that
does not go as far as the universal declaration of human rights, to which we
subscribe. Personally, and sincerely, I do not believe the dangers that you
have outlined really exist; and if they do, we can deal with the situation when
it arises. But I certainly think it would be very questionable for us, when we
are dealing with this problem, to refuse to go as far in protecting our citizens
from the liability to cruel, inhuman or degrading punishments as we have
ourselves subscribed to in the universal declaration of human rights.
Frankly, I see no danger in using those words, and I see some very de
sirable objectives to be achieved. I question whether you would really want
us to go less far than those words which we have already used.
Mr. B ad an ai : In view of the complication that this interpretation would
give, would it not be better to remove clause (b) entirely? Clause (a) reads:
Authorize or effect the arbitrary detention, imprisonment, or exile
of any person;'
and then clause (b):
Impose or authorize the imposition of torture, or cruel, inhuman
or degrading treatment or punishment;
(c) deprive a person who has been arrested or detained
(i) of the right to be informed promptly of the reason for his
arrest or detention,
and so on. But could we not remove that objectionable clause entirely,
clause (b)?
Mr. Fulton: So the bill of rights would then be silent upon the question
of the types of punishment that might be authorized?

Mr. B ad an ai : Not at all.
Mr. Fulton: It would be, would it not, if you removed clause (b)?
Mr. Badanai: No, because you do not envisage any imposition of torture,
cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment.
For instance, supposing a person committed murder, as has been men
tioned here this afternoon: he would still be imprisoned, and condemned under
the law, and judged accordingly. But this particular clause, it is thought, is
going to perhaps lead to a considerable amount of misunderstanding, and
perhaps a conflict of interpretation.
Mr. Fulton: But if you remove it, the bill of rights is entirely silent
as to the limitations or prohibitions against the imposition of cruel, etcetera,
punishment.
This has been a tradition in bills of rights since, at least, the British bill
of rights in 1689. It is a part of the universal declaration of human rights,
and when we are codifying and declaring the protection of the rights of the
individual who lives in Canada, I think it would be questionable—that is not
quite the word I want: it would be a course which would render us liable to
condemnation, if we should be absolutely silent on this matter on which
traditionally bills of right and documents of this sort have spoken—
The Chairman: You would be derelict.
Mr. Fulton: We would be derelict, yes.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway): It seems to me that in addition to
these particular words in here, when we get to quote “degrading” that if we
made the stipulation it also had to be unusual that would bring it more in line
with what we understand. While it is true that has been made in an inter
national declaration there has been no interpretation of that.
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Mr. Fulton: That is true.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Along the line Mr. Browne was following, may
I point this out. I appreciate the point that you make about your position in
the light of Canada’s acceptance of the declaration of human rights. But I would
point out that the declaration of human rights was a declaration by some
sixty odd nations at the time in the United Nations. This, however, represents
situations which are not present in our country. There are countries where there
does exist torture, where there does exist cruel, inhuman and degrading treat
ment. It is not possible in a declaration to encompass each individual nation’s
situation. It is a general declaration, and while Canada adheres to its principles,
I do not think we would in any way be belying the undertaking by a formula
tion of words in regard to this. In the light of the discussion I would suggest
that you and your officials might give further consideration to the wording
and we as members of the committee might do likewise. I have some thoughts
about the wording, but there is one word which still is troubling me in my
formulation. I have been trying to clear it up. I think it does basically this
thing, but does not invite the same interpretation which concerns so many
of us.
Mr. Fulton: I appreciate what you say. I think it is a sensible suggestion.
You must understand that in defending what is in here I am not defending it
stubbornly. Naturally, however, I want to rehearse with you all the questions
which have been in our minds in arriving at these words. I do not think I
would be assisting the discussion if I did not defend this fully. I do not want
it to be taken that I am stubborn and that we believe we are the sole repository
of all wisdom and that the committee has none. So I certainly accept your
suggestion.
I would like to conclude with one further observation. We are legislating,
as I see it, not for this generation only. It is true we are admitting that what
we have here is our inheritance of ancient and traditional liberties and we are,
if you like, codifying and declaring that with legal effect, but we are also
declaring that it exists for the future. I do not think there is sufficient justifica
tion for taking out certain words simply by saying “but we are not likely to
resort to this form of punishment” and so on. We are legislating, as I think
kll legislators must, not only for today but in effect for tomorrow and the
future.
I raise again for your consideration the question whether Canada inter
nationally would not be exposed to criticism and whether we would not be
giving a weapon to our ideological opponents if in our bill of rights we were to
stop short in the words in the declaration of rights, particularly when we say
we feel they are civilized democratic principles. If a country of civilized and
democratic principles cannot go as far as the universal declaration goes then we
are giving a tremendous weapon to the communists. They would say “we have
no hesitation in ascribing to this”. I know that this is propaganda, but we are
engaged in a struggle for the capture of men’s minds in the uncommitted
nations. I would be very disturbed if in Canada’s bill of rights we stopped short
of words to which we have adhered in an international document when those
who are ideologically opposed have adhered. I am convinced that the courts
will not interpret the words as you suggest and if they do we can deal with
that matter expeditiously by appeal to the Supreme Court and by act of
parliament if necessary. I make this case to you as a final enlargement, if you
like, of the sort of thought we had in mind in using these words. However, I
will discharge the undertaking to reconsider it, and reconsider the arguments
that have been made.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, does that conclude our discussion in regard
to clause 3?
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Mr. Martin (Essex East): No.
The Chairman: Could we wind up our consideration of clause 3 in five
minutes?
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I think we could wind this up by 6 o’clock.
The Chairman: I think we should try to finish our consideration of this
clause.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I have only one comment to make. I appreciate
the strong statement made by the minister, a statement that one would
expect him to make, but the attitude of the Soviet Union, for instance, to
this kind of concern, does not really affect me at all, because when they will
learn what the rule of law means, as we apply it, then they will be in a
sound position to take exception to our desire here to arrive at a formula
that will not create complications in our judicial system. I am sure the minister
would fully agree with me, in spite of what he has said.
Mr. Fulton: Except that I do not agree that it will create the complica
tions in our judicial system which you have envisaged.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): No, but I simply say, as far as the Soviet
Union is concerned, they are not in a very strong position to argue on the
grounds of cruel, inhuman, or degrading treatment.
With regard to (c) (ii) :
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, no such act, order,
rule, regulation or law shall be construed or applied so as to—deprive
a person—of the right to retain and instruct counsel without delay.
The Chairman: It says: “—deprive a person who has been arrested or
detained—”.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
The Chairman : Those are rather important words.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : Yes. “—deprive a person who has been arrested
or detained—of the right to retain and instruct counsel without delay—”.
That clearly only applies to a person who has been arrested or detained?
Mr. Fulton: That is correct.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): It would not apply to a witness?
Mr. Fulton: That is correct, unless he was ordered to be arrested by
the court, then he would have that right.
Mr. Dorion: Arrested without charge, then we would have that advantage.
Mr. Fulton: Yes.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Thank you for pointing that out.
Mr. Rapp: In regard to subclause (f) which reads:
Deprive a person of the right to a fair and public hearing by an
independent and impartial tribunal for the determination of any criminal
charge against him.
Would that apply to any person that is in Canada, or is domiciled in
Canada, or who travels through Canada and who is perhaps detained for
some reason or other in Canada?
Mr. Fulton: It would apply to any person who it entitled to the pro
tection of our laws.

Mr. Rapp: You mean it applies only to a citizen of this country?
Mr. Fulton: No, no. You have asked me a general question and I can
only give you a general answer. In the form in which you ask the question,
the only answer I can give is; it would apply to any person who was entitled
to the protection of our laws.
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Mr. Rapp: That is what I wanted to know.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I su pose it is the result of fatigue, but I did
not mean to refer to (c) (ii), I was referring to (d) which says:

authorize a court, tribunal, commission, board or other authority to
compel a person to give evidence if he is denied counsel, protection
against self crimination or other consitutional safeguards.
Now, that is not restrictive as in (c)?
Mr. Fulton: No.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Does that mean that if a witness, before a
court, tribunal, or commission—not as accused—wishes counsel, he is to be
given that opportunity?
Mr. Fulton: I think the kèy word is “compel”.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Yes.
Mr. Fulton: It says: “compel a person to give evidence if he is denied
counsel", and these are alternatives: “if he is denied counsel, protection against
self crimination, or other constitutional safeguards”. So I think that the case
of the witness to which you have referred would be covered by that second
alternative protection against self crimination.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Not necessarily.
3(d) authorize a court, tribunal, commission, board or other author
ity to compel a person to give evidence if he is denied counsel, protection
against self crimination or other constitutional safeguards:—
Yes, those words arc all relevant. But could we not conceive of a situation
where we might have a whole series of counsel representing a whole series of
witnesses, each with the right of examination in chief, each with the right of
cross-examination? I am just raising this, and I want to make sure I understand
what is intended.
Mr. Fulton: It does not go nearly that far. Even on the most liberal
interpretation it simply means the court is not authorized to compel a person
to give evidence if he is denied these things, one or more of these things, which
are spelled out there; but it does not give him the right to have counsel for
cross-examination.
Mr. Dorion: It does not change any particular law or the rules of evidence?

Mr. Fulton: I think not.
Mr. Martin yEssex East): You mean this is a right that now exists?
Mr. Dorion: Not exactly. It is not a written right; it is accepted by the
courts.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What do we mean by “constitutional safe
guards”?
Mr. Fulton: A witness sometimes takes counsel’s advice as to whether he
should answer or not; and counsel advises him to ask for the protection afforded
under the Canada Evidence Act. I agree with Mr. Dorion it just is not explicit
or implicit in the law now, but this guarantees it for the future.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What do we mean by “constitutional safeguards"?

-Mr. Fulton: That means our constitutional and judicial rights with regard
to legal process and the rights and protection of a witness who is before the court.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Are they protected now?
Mr. Fulton: Some of them are written out and some are not.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I do not know what we mean by “constitutional
safeguards.”
Mr. Fulton: I would say one of them would be the presumption of
innocence until you are proven guilty.
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Mr. Aiken: The right not to give evidence against yourself.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Is that a constitutional safeguard?
Mr. Fulton: I think it is included in the generic description, just as are

other specific statutes, apart from the B.N.A. Act, in our constitution.
Mr. Dorion : It is the unwritten law.
Mr. Fulton: Much of that is dependent on the Evidence Act, on the judicial
interpretation of the Evidence Act; and I think there is a body of law which,
in this sense, I might appropriately describe as constitutional knowledge, such
as the principle that a person before a court is entitled to be given the benefit
of the doubt.
Mr. Dorion: Would the protection given by clause 3(/) apply to the
security case as well?
Mr. Fulton: Cause 3(f) applies only to criminal charges.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): What about sex charges?
Mr. Fulton: In our view, under this section, the court does not have the
obligation to hold the hearing in camera, but the court may order it if the
court deems it appropriate. If an accused insisted on the hearing being in
public, I think, under this section, he probably would be entitled thereto. I
think it very unlikely that a person accused of a sex crime would insist on a
public hearing, if the court were prepared to order a hearing in camera,
because that provision is partly there for his own protection.
Mr. Dorion: This section would surely modify that article?
Mr. Fulton: Yes, I have said I think it goes to modify it, if an accused
insists his hearing should be in public.
Mr. Dorion: It would be impossible to apply that to the delinquents,
because there is no criminal charged under that?
Mr. Fulton: I think there has been a mistake made there in some of the

submissions. The Juvenile Delinquents Act is expressly stated—Mr. Dorion: There is no criminal charge?
Mr. Fulton: —not to be criminal, in the sense that he is charged not with
a criminal offence but with a delinquency. So I do not think that paragraph
(/) would apply to hearings under the Juvenile Delinquents Act.
Mr. Stewart: All through?
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I am not all through.
The Chairman: That completes the discussion of clause 3, then.
Mr. Aiken: Before we adjourn, there is one matter I would like to raise.
The Chairman: Proceed.
Mr. Aiken: We have all been invited to try our hand at a preamble to
this bill of rights. Accordingly I have devised one which I would like to put
on record, just in case I do not have an opportunity to do so later. It will just
take a moment. It is reasonably short, and I think it is written in a form of
modem, international language, and that it incorporates other things which
will be acceptable. This is the suggested preamble.
Recognizing the desire of all Canadians to understand the princip'es
on which the peace, order and good government of Canada are founded,
and desiring to establish these principles in writing, and to declare them
as fundamental to the laws of the parliament of Canada.
Mr. Fulton: I would like to express our appreciation to Mr. Aiken for
his helpful endeavour.
Mr. Aiken: I want to put it on record so it may be considered. I think it
does involve words taken from the British North America Act, and that it

462

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

clearly indicates the authority within which the bill intends to operate; and I
think it is written undoubtedly in modern, international language which is
commonly used.

Mr. Fulton: And it includes some words from history.
The Chairman: I suggest that the clerk make a copy of the suggested
preamble and distribute it to the members, because it may be two or three
days before we have this evidence.
Mr. Dorion: I have prepared my own preamble, but it is not very com
plete, because I shall have to take into consideration the question which was
raised this afternoon after a discussion of clause 2.
Now, I believe Mr. Martin has a draft preamble as well.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): It is in process; I do not have the facilities

which Mr. Aiken has.
Mr. Dorion: I believe the best way to consider the project is for the
members to have those projects in their hands. We should have copies made
of them for distribution as soon as possible so that we may be in a position
to discuss them when we meet again.
Mr. Fulton: May I suggest for your consideration that in addition to
each member who feels so inclined suggesting his own preamble and putting
it on the record, that when all these have come in, might I suggest that you
consider the appointment of a subcommittee to determine what is the best
amalgamation of these various suggestions so that they might form a draft
preamble which the committee itself might suggest.
In that way—and I am not trying to shirk any responsibility—you will
avoid any suggestion that the minister arbitrarily has chosen parts of this,
that or the other one, and that he appeared to favour or to disfavour any
individual.
If you feel that this is not an improper suggestion for me to make, I
know I can say that it would be very helpful to me.
The Chairman: I think it is a very excellent suggestion.
Now may I put on record a suggested preamble which I received from
Mr. John A. W. Drysdale:
Preamble to the Canadian bill of rights. We, the people of Canada,
believe that the strength of a nation lies in the protection of the funda
mental freedoms and human rights of all men with equality before
the law regardless of race, religion, national origin, colour or sex and
we believe that by setting forth these rights and freedoms that we
reaffirm faith in the essential dignity of man.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): If the Minister of Justice would rise in his
place in the house and ask that we revert to motions, he might get some 285
suggestions.
Mr. Fulton: I am trying to keep the work of the committee and the
government within a reasonable compass, Mr. Martin.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, we will adjourn now until 9:30 tomorrow
morning. We hope to have the minister back with us then, at 9:30 on Monday
morning.
Mr. Stewart: But we meet tomorrow morning?
The Chairman: Yes, we meet tomorrow morning to hear Mr. Mundell.
Mr. Stewart: In this room?
The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Deschatelets: Mr. Chairman, with regard to Monday morning, would
it not be possible to postpone the meeting until Tuesday? I think it might suit
the members of the committee if it could be done.
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Mr. Dorion: That would give us a chance to look at the evidence, which
would- be better.
Mr. Deschatelets: We are going to sit tomorrow morning.
Mr. Dorion: It would give us a chance to look at the evidence, because
we have not all the evidence before us.'
The Chairman: Clause 5 presents no problem; but we have to deal with
clauses 4 and 6. We are having a general discussion now in relation to them,
and after we conclude those, we still go back to clause 2.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : I do not think we would lose much time if we
waited until Tuesday. It would give us a chance to look at this matter. We are
all working on this.
Mr. Deschatelets: We would choose a time that would suit the con
venience of the minister. It might be Tuesday afternoon, or night.
Mr. Martin: When are you getting back from Washington, Mr. Minister?
Mr. Fulton: We scheduled Saturday and Sunday, in case we needed both
days; but I will certainly be back Monday morning. We expect the combines
legislation in the house, so I think the only time I could be available on
Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday—depending on how quickly that bill goes
through the house—would be from 9:30 to 11 o’clock in the mornings.
The Chairman: We are all sitting on Saturday, so I think 95 per cent of
us would still be here.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): Mr. Deschatelets, Mr. Dorion and Mr. Badanai
have expressed this view. I do not think one day would matter very much. It
would give us a chance to look at this thing.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway) : Mr. Chairman, if we do not complete
it on Monday morning, at least we could make some progress, and time is of
the essence in this session. It seems to me that we should take advantage of the
fact that the minister does have that time available on Monday morning, when
we would make some progress that otherwise we would not make.
Mr. Martin (Essex East) : We could do that on Tuesday morning.
The Chairman: I am afraid we are going to need all the time that we have
available to deal fully with this bill in the committee. I do not think we should
lose the opportunity of proceeding on Monday morning for an hour and a half.
Mr. Martin (Essex East): I can be here on Monday morning; but three
members of the committee find it difficult. I think we have to accommodate
them.
The Chairman: All I can do is put it up to the committee. I will entertain
a motion as to when we reconvene after Saturday.
Mr. Browne (Vancouver-Kingsway) : I move that we sit on Monday morn
ing, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Rapp: I second that.
Mr. Badanai: I move that we meet on Tuesday morning at 9:30.
The Chairman: If you negative the motion that is before us, I do not think
we will be sitting before Tuesday, so it is the same thing. I will put the motion,
and that is, that we sit at 9:30 on Monday morning. All those in favour?
Contrary?
I declare the motion carried.
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